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aleading, international oil and gas company that competes and.
- operates successfully in the global natural resources %@gz
energy industry. EA

CORPORATE MISSION

At EP1, we strive to grow cur business by capturing best .
opportunities in the oil and gas as well as energy-related b : |
industry that are well aligned with our business objectives, |
create new value for the Group, and generate substantial

capital growth for our stakeholders,
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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

On behalf of the board {the “Board"} of directors (the "Directors") of EPI (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”} and its
subsidiaries {collectively, the "Group™), I hereby present the annual resulis and the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December, 2014. The Group recorded a loss for the year of HK$381.1 miliion, against a foss for
the year of HX$679.2 million in year 2013

During year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s core ahd continuing cperations were petraleum exploration and
production and had 10 producing wells generating off sales reverue in Mendoza, Argentina. Pursuant to the Operation
Agreement signed on 5 June 2012, Chafiares agreed to release EP Energy from the Commitment under the vV Agreement
signed on 12 January 2011. The Group is focused on workover and infrastructure investments to improve production on the
axisting oil wells from year 2012 to 2014. The Group had performed a workover job to one of its producing oil wells and alsc
had continuad investing to improve our own well fluid collection tank and pipeline. The Group will continue to invest in
workover on the existing 10 producing oil wells and ins improving own well fluid collection system during year 2015.

As per the Possible Acquisition Announcements of EPI {(Holdings) Limited dated 28 Novemnber 2012, 11 February 2014 and
30 September 2014, the Company has continued since its last up-date announcement to wark with the Posstble Vendors in
relation to the Proposed Acquisition, however due to recent significant decreases in oil price and the lack of visibility on
near to madium term prospects of a stustained rebound in such prices are presenting challenges in pursuing the Proposed
Acquisition based on the basic purchase price range set olt in the MOU entered into between the parties in November
2012. The Company and the Possible Vendors will decide whether or not it is desirable to resuime negotiations for a
possible revised terms after oil prices stabilise.

The Board promises that the Group will be accountable to shareholders through which their interests will be protected, by

enhancing the communications with the capital market and strengthening our corporate governance, in order to deliver a
considerable capital growth and maximum profit returns to our shareholders.

L ¥

Eric Ho
Non-Executive Chairman

27 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group's core business is the petroleum exploration and production in the Puestc Pozo Cercado Concession and
Chafares Herrados Concession (together, the "Concessions”) in the Cuyana Basin, Mendoza Province of Argentina.
Pursuant to the operation agreement signed on 5 lune 2012, Chafiares agreed to release EP Energy S.A. ("EP Energy”)
from the commitment under a joint venture agreement {the “JV Agreement”) signed on 12 January 2011. Following the
short-term development plag, the Group continued to focus on investment to improve production, and to maintain
operation costs of the existing 10 producing wells. The Group has parformed a workover job to one of its producing oil welis
during year 2014. The Group has continued investing to improve our own well fluid collection tank and pipefine. As at 31
December 2074, the Graup has finished drilling 10 oil wells in the Chafares Herrados Concession Area, Mendoza cilfield
project. All the 10 wells are in production, of which 5 il wells weye drilled by Have Result Investments Limited ("Have
Result”) where the Group is entitled to 51% interest on production, and 5 oil wells were drilled by EP Energy where the
Group is entitled to 72% intarest on production. The contingent il resources in certain shallow reservoirs in the Mendoza
Oilfield as at 31 December 2014 are as follows,

31 December

Contingent Oil Resource {unit: million barrelst* 2013

Category Gross (100%)

Low Estimate (1C) 82.3

Best Estimate (2C) 140.6
239.2

High Estimate 3C)

* According to the Technical Review Report issued by Rema Gil and Mining Assoclates Limited on 25 March 2015 on The Chanares Herrados and Puesto
Pozo Cercado Cil Project in Mendoza Province, Argentina.

On & March 2014, EP Energy was notified by Chafares that the shareholders of Chafiares received an irrevocable ofier from
a third party for the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Chafiares targetted to be completed by 5 June 2014.
Pursuant to the JV Agreement, EP Energy has the right to compete on equal footing in the event that Chafiares decides to,
among cther things, sell or transfer, totally or partially, its capacity as concessioraire of the Concessions, or if Chafiares’s
sharehoclders decide to sell the majority of the shares of Chafiares. EP Energy informed Chafares before 5 April 2014 of its
interest to compete under the referred terms. The deadline for stbmission of an acquisition offer by EP Energy was in
principie on 5 May 2014, The Company has not made the proposed offer to Chafiares by 5 May 2014. The Company
received a notice from Chafiares’s shareholders dated 3 July 2014 whereby they were informed that the sale of their
aggregate 100% equity interest in Chafiares was completed on 12 june 2014. The buyer of such equily interest is an

individual third party.

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluaticn assets ("E&E assets”) is reviewed for impairment indicators
annually and adjusted for impairment loss in accordance with HKAS 36 “impairment of assets” ("HKAS 36") and whenever
there are any "trigger” events or changes in circumstances i\nciicating that the carryving amount may not be recoverable,
During the years ended 31 December 2009, 31 December 2010, 31 December 2011 and the six months ended 30 Jure 2012,
there were no events or changes in circumstances indicating that the catrying amount of E&E assets might not be
recoverable. Accordingly, no impairment needed to be provided for the E&E assets.

The Company has performed an impairment review on its ERE assets during the year 2012 and the year 2013. An
impairment loss of HK$3,130,106,000 and HK$442,197,000 were recognised as the carrying amount of the E&E assets
exceeding its recoverable amount as at 31 December 2012 and 2013 respectively. They were non-cash item adjustments
and did not affect the existing operations of oii fieid.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

West Texas Intermediate {"WT1"} spot price has dropped substantially from December 2014 and January 2015, the average
WTI spot price for December 2014 reduced by mare than 21% as compared with that of November 2014, and the average
WTI spot price had a further decrease of 20% in January 2015 (sourced from U.S. Energy Information Administration ("EIA")
wehsite}, With reference to the reduction by 45% and 30%, respectively, in Year 2015 and 2014 WTI spot oil price forecast in
Year 2015 Short Term Energy Outlook issued by U.S, Energy information Administration {part of U.S. Department of Energy)
as compared with the WTI price forecast in Year 2014 Annual Energy Outlook ("Year 2014 Outlook”), the directors of the
Company considered that there would be a high prebability of deterioration in the growth of future oil price. Should the
drilling pian be taken place in accordance with schedule made in last year, it would not be beneficial to the Group. The
Group decided to delay and change its development plan on the Argenting cil project and performed an impairment test on
its E&E assets as at 31 December 2014, The Company has engaged Roma Oil and Mining Associates Limited ("Roma”) 0
perform a valuation of the E&E assets. Details of impairment review are set cut in the Group Financial Review section.




& EPI{Holdings) Limited » Annual Report 2014

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GROUP FINANGIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's turnover was HK$85.7 milliocn, a decrease of HK$4.1 million as
compared with HX$89.8 million recorded in last year. The Group recorded a joss for the year of HK$381.1 million, against a
loss for the year of HK$479.2 million in year 2013. During year 2014, an impairment loss of HK$91,049,000 (year 2013:
HK$442,197,000) was recognised in respect of the E&E assets and impairment loss of HK$0 {year 2013: HK$51,111,CC0) was
recorded in respect of property, plait and equipment rejating to the Chafiares oil project.

On 3 November 2009, the Group acduired the entire issued share capital of Have Result for a consideration of
HK$3,835,273,000. The principal assets held by Have Result are E&E assets, inciuding oil exploration rights. For the fair vaiue
of the oif exploration rights acquired, as the exploration on the acquired areas was at an initial stage and the prospective
resources have been estimated using a consideration of deterministic and probabilistic metheds, the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significani that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably. As a result, the fair value of the consideration paid, including the shares and convertible notes issued,
was used o account for the cost of the oit exploration rights, which was HK$3,810,136,000, being capitalised as an E&E
assets, At the time of acquiring the entire issued share capital of Have Result, except for the 51% working interest in the
Concessions in the Cuyana Basin, Mendoza Province of Argeritina, Have Result has no other operating assets and therefore
the market value of Have Result is mainly dominated by the value of the oilfield. Three generally accepted valuation
methodologies have been considerad in valuing Have Resuit by BMI Appraisals Limited {"BMI"), the professional valuer,
ramety the market approach, the cost approach and income approach. The market approach provides indications of value
by comparing the subject to simifar businesses, business ownership interests, and securities that have been sold in the
market. The cost approach providss indications of value by studying the amaunis required to recreate the business for
which a value conclusion is desired. This approach seeks to meastre the economic benefits of ownership by quantifying
the amount of fund that would be reguired to replace the future service capability of the business. The income approach is
the conversion of expected periodic benefits of ownership into an indication of value. It is based on the principle that an
informed buyear would pay no more for the project than an amount equal to the present worth of anticipated future benefits
from the same or a substantially similar business with a similar risk profile. BMI have considered that the income approach
is not appropriate to value Have Result, as there are insufficient historical and forecasted financial and operational data of
the oilfield. Morsover, the income approach may involve adoption of much more assumptions than the other two
approaches, not all of which can be easily quantiied or ascertained. in the event that any such assumptions are founded to
be incorrect or unfounded, the valuation result wouid be significantly affected. The cost approach is also regarded
inadequate in this valuation, as this approach does not take future growth potential of Have Result inte consideration. Thus,
they have determined that the market approach is the most appropriate valuation approach for this valuation.




Annual Repoit 2014 » EP! (Holdings) Limited

9

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BMI used the market approach by referring to recent sales and purchase transactions of cilfields. They referred to 84 recent
sales and purchase transactions related to oilfields over the world (referred to as the “Comparable Transactions”) tiil
lune 2009, of which they further analysed the natures, the presentation methods of the resetves and other parameters that
may affect the comparability to the cilfield. in the valuation, BMI used the weighted-average adjusted consideration price to
proved and probable reserve (the “Adjusted P/Reserve”} multipie of the Comparabte Transactions to determine the
market value of the oilfield and the market value of Have Result accordingly. Based on the investigation and analysis done
hy BMI, it was determined that the market value of a 100% equity interest in Have Result as at 30 june 2009 was
US$612,000,00C (or HK$4,773,600,000). The carrying value of the E&E assets of HK$3,810,135,000 as at 3 November 2009,
date of acquisition, was approximately 79.82% of the valuation of a 100% equity interest in Have Result as at 30 June 2009.
When determining the fair value of the E&E assets acquired, as the exploration on the acquired areas was at an initial stage
and the prospective resources have been estimated using a consideration of deterministic and probabilistic methods, the
range of reasonabie fair value estimates is so significant that the Directors are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably. As a result, the fair value of the consideration paid, including shares and convertibie notes isstied, was
used to sccount for the cost of the E&E assets. The carrying amount of the F&E assets is reviewed for impairment indicators
annually and adjusted for impairment loss in accordance with HKAS 35 and whenever there are any “trigger” events or
changes in circumstances indicating that the carrving amount may not be recoverable. During the vears ended 31
December 2009, 31 Decernber 2010, 31 December 2011 and the period ended 30 June 2012, there were no events or
changes in circumstances indicating that the carrying amount of E&E assets might not be recoverable, According to the
requirements under HKAS 36, no impairment needed to be provided for the E&E assets.

in November 2012, the Group noted that the crude oil selling price to YPF through Chaflares decreased by US$1.5 per barrel
to US$67.2 per barrel, and dropped to US$66.5 per barret in December 2012, which maintained through Aprif 2013, This is
the first time cil prices decreased since the Company commenced its invesiment in Argentina. The Company has
performed ar impairment test on its E&E assets during the year 2012 and has applied a more prudent estimation on factors
and assumptions in assessing the recoverable amounts o the F&E assets by adopting discounted cashflow method. An
impairment loss of HK$3,130,706,000 was recognised as the carrying amount of the E&E assets exceeding its recoverable
amolnt in the year ended 31 December 2012, ‘
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

in year 2013, taking into account of the decrease in short term WTI spot oil price forecast in Year 2014 Energy Outlook
issted by EiA by 20% or more as compared with the Year 2013 Energy Qutlook and the potential acquisition opportunity,
the Directors of the Company (the "Directors”) decided to further delay the Group's overall drilling plan to fater years, and
conducted a review of the impainment on the F&F assels as at 31 December 2013. The Company has engaged Roma to
perform a valuation of the E&E assets, based on market approach and income approach. Roma used the market approach
by referring to certain comparable sales and purchase transactions of cilfields in year 2012 and 2013, of which they further
analysed the natures, the presentation methods of the reserves and other parameters that may affect the comparability
the oilfield. It the valuation, Roma used the Adjusted P/Reserve muliiple of the Comparable Transactions to determine the
market value of the oilfield and the market value of the E&E assets held by the Company accordingly. Roma adopted
discounted cash flow method in the income approach valuation. During the adoption of the discounted cash flow method,
amore prudent estimation on those factors and assumptions for future recoverable arounts on the E&E assets were used.
Wwith reference to the E&E Asseis Valuation issued by Roma dated 24 March 2014, the E&E assets are valued at
US$24,575,000 and US$26,445,000 by market approach and income approach respectively. According to HKAS 36, the
recoverable amount of an asset is defined as "the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use”. The
Directors considered the valuation in market approach and income approach represents the fair value less cost to sell and
the value in use of its E&E assets. The Company adopted the income approach valuation as the recoverable amount of the
E&E assets following the requirement iny HKAS 36. As 3 result, an impairment loss of HK$442,197,000 {year 2012:
HK$3,130,106,000) was recognised as the carrying amount of the E&E assets exceeding ifs recoverable amount. It is a non-
cash itern adjustment and does not affect the current operations of oil field.

From December 2014, Wil spot price has dropped substantially, where avarage price in December 2014 has decreased by
U5$16.5 per barrel to US$59.3 per barrel (November 2014 at US$75.8 per barrel). The average price further decreased to
Us$47.2 per barrel in January 2015. The Group’s Argentina subsidiaries were selling oil at US$73.9 per barrel in December
2014 and US$66.% per barrel in January 2015, which were higher than the W spot price for the same period.

On 10 March 2015, FiA has released a Short Term Energy Outlook where the forecast WTI spot price for Year 2015 and Year
2016 are US$52 per barrel and US$70 per barrel respectively. An extract from Short Term Energy Outlook: "EiA projects the
Brent crude oil price will average $59/bbi in 2015, up $2/bbi from last month’s STEO, with prices rising from an average of
$56/bbl in the second gquarter to an average of $67/bbl in the fourth quarter. The Brent crude oil price is projected to
average $75/bbl in 2016, WTi prices in 2015 and 2016 are expected to average $7/bbf and $5/bbl, respectively, below
Brent.”. Compared with the above latest WTI spot price forecast against the price forecast in Year 2014 Annual Energy
Outlook, the latest price forecast has dropped by 42% and 25% for Year 2015 and Year 2016 respeactively, the Directors
considered that there would be & high probability of deterioration in the growth of short term to mid-term future oil price.
Should the drilling plan be taken place in accordance with schedule made in last year, it wouid not be beneficial to the
Group, The Directors of the Company decided to change and delay the Group’s overall development plan in its Argentina oil
field operation, and conducted a review of the impairment on the E&E assets as at 31 Decamber 2014,

The Company has engaged Roma to perform a valuation of the E&E assets as of 31 December 2014. As the sample size of
the recent comparable transactions in or closest to Argentina was small, Roma considered the market approach could not
give a conclusive result. Roma has adopted the income approach in arriving at both the value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal of the E&E assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Roma adopted discounted cash flow method in the income approach valuation. with reference to the recent drops in
actual WTI spot price and the reduction in future price forecast as stated below, the Directors of the Company decided to
chiange and delay the Group's overalt development plan in its Argentina oil field operation:

e W7l spot price has dropped substantially in December 2014 and January 2015, the average WTI spot price was at
US$75.79 per barrel for November 2014, at US$59.29 per harrel for December 2014 and at Us$47.22 per barrel for
January 2015, a reduction by 21% in December 2014 and 20% in January 2015 respectively (average WTI spot price
sourced from EIA website).

) According to the Short Term Energy Outlock issued by Eia on 10 March 2015, the forecast WTI spot price for Year
2015 and Year 2016 are US$52 per barrel and US$70 per barrel respectively. These short term WTI spot prices
raduced by 30% or more as compared with the Year 2014 Outlook, whete forecast oil price per barrel for Year 2015 at
US$52 (Year 2014 Outlook: US$89.8), Year 2016 at US$70 {Year 2014 Quticok: US$92.9). The Directors took a more
prudent aporoach in estimating the short term and mid-term future ol selling prices to YPF and considered the future
oil selfing prices would increase steadily.

s With reference to the decrease in future growth in ofl selling prices, the directors of the Company decided to change
and delay the Group's overadl drilling plan to later years as the original plan made in last year would not be beneficial
1o the Group. The production quantity used to calculate future cash flows from operations has decreased.

«  The discount rate used for the impairment assessment in 2014 has considered a higher country risk of Argentina in
view of the depreciation of Argentina Peso against US Dollar in January 2014 and economic situation in Argentina. The
discount rate used in year 2014 was 18.06% {year 2013: 17.72%).

The discount rate reduced the net present value of future cash flow of the project. With reference to the E&E Assets
valuation issued by Roma dated 25 March 2015, the value in use of the E&E assets under the income approach was
estimated as US$14,772,000; while the fair value less costs of disposal under the income approach was US$11,570,000 as
at 31 December 20%4. According to HKAS 36, the recoverable amount of an asset is defined as "the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use”. The Company adopted the value in use valuation under income approach as the
recoverable amount of the E&E assets following the reguirement in HKAS 36. As a result, an impairment loss of
HK$91,049,000 (year 2013 HK$442,197,000) was recognised as the carrying amount of the E&E assets over its recoverable
amount. It is a non-cash itern adiustment and does rot affect the current operations of ol field.

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to HK$ and
the Argentina peso ("ARS"). The Group considers there is no significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations so fong
as the Hong Kong-United States doellar exchange rate remains pegged.

The oil selling price for our Argentina operations is based on US Dollar, and converied into ARS in Cfficial exchange rate on
a monthly basis. Majority of our investrent cost on drilling cost, completion cost, workover job, infrastructure and
equipment are based on US Dollar, and converted into ARS in Official exchange rate at time of payment. The Group
currently does rot have a formal foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management menitors foreigh exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency expesire should the need arise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF GROUP OPERATIONS
Exploration and sales of petroleum

The Group's core business is the petroleum exploration and production: in the Concessions in the Cuyana Basin, Mendoza
Provinca of Argentina. There was no acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies during year 2014.

During year 2014, the Greup had performed & workover iob to ane of its producing oil wells. The Group had continued
investing to improve our own well fluid collection tank and pipeline. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had finished drilling
10 oll wells in the Chaffares Harrados Concessicn Area, Mendoza oilfield preject. All the 10 weils were in production, of
which 5 oil welis were drilled by Have Result Investments Limited ("Have Result”} where the Group fs entitied to 51%
interest on production, and 5 il wells were drilled by EP Energy where the Group is entitied to 72% interest on production.

During year 2014, the Group had 10 producing wells generating oil sales revenue. Ali our oil production was soid to YPF
Sociedad Antnima, through Chafares, the Concessions owner,

Revenue generated from the sajes of petroleum segment for the year ended 2614 amotunted to HK$85.7 miltion. As of 31
December 2014, the Company had invested HK$589.2 million in the drilling and completion of its oil wells, as well as related
infrastructure, in the Mendoza project. This amount included: (1) HK$411.8 milfion in oil wel! drilling and completion which
was classified as oil & gas properties and for which depreciation started from the commencemest of production; (2}
HK$177.4 milfion of oil welt drilling exploration cost for exploration purpose 0 collect data in the Potrerillos Formation that
was located at a depth of over 4,200 meters, which was charged to prefit or loss in year 2010. During the year 2014, the
depreciation and depletion of the oif & gas properties was HK$17.4 mitlion.

Future operation plan
Short-term development plan

Pursuant to the Operation Agreement signed on 5 June 2012, Chanares agreed to release EP Energy from its commitments
under tha N Agreement signad cn 12 January 2011, The Group is focused on workover and infrastructure investments to
improve production on the existing oil wells from year 2012 to 2014. The Group wilt continue to invest in workover on the
existing 10 producing oil wells and in improving own well fluid coliection system during year 2015.

Long-term development plan

The Directors considered the current economic situation of Argentina and decided to restart the overall business
development plan on Chafares oil project in later years. The future business plan is developed by applying a more prudent
estimation on those factors and assumptions for futtire cashflow estimation on the project. In developing the future
businass plan, the Directers have taken a more prudent approach and only considered the production estimatior: up to the
expiry of Concessions after a 10-year extension to year 2027. The change in development plan and the production
estimation is a more prudent way to value the project. The production gquantity used to calculate future cash flow from
operations has decreased.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other business opportunities

After setting up the technical & operational team and having a stable development in Argentina operation, the Group
continues making effort in searching for opportunities in oil & gas exploration and production business. The Group is
focused on the oil & gas field with stabie production base, with proven reserves, with certain development opportunities, in
those industrial-advanced countries, such as the United States of America {"U.5.").

0n 10 January 2014, the Company entered into a confidential letter of intent {the "Letter of Intent") with three independent
third parties {the "Possible Vendors”) with respect to the proposed acquisition (the “Proposed Acquisition”) of the
entire interest in those private oil and gas properties in the U.S. and certain related assets {the "Target Assets") held by
the Possible Vendors and others through specific corporate and partnership structures. Simitar to the memorandum of
understanding referred to in the Company’s announcement dated 28 November 2012, the Letter of inient does not create
legally hinding obiigations on the paities to proceed with the transaction.

On 8 Ianuary 2015, the Company has made an Announcement refating to the Proposed Acquisition to the effect that whilst
the Company has continued since its last updated anncuncement o work with the Possible Vendors in relation to the
Proposed Acquisition, recent significant decreases in oil price and the lack of visibility on near to medium term prospects of
a sustained rebound in such prices are presenting challengeas in pursuing the Proposed Acguisition based on the basic
purchase price range sat out in the memorandum of understanding entered into hetween the parties in November 2012,
The Company and the Possible Vendors will decide whether or not it is desirable to resume negotiaticns for a possible
revised terms after oil prices stabilise. '

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2014, the net asset value of the Group was HK$30.7 million (2013: HK$218.2 million) and the net asset
value per share was HK$0.006 {2013: HK$0.05).

The Comparty has antered intc a bank loan agreement with China Development Bank, of which the outstanding balance
was approximately HK$218,400,000 as at 31 December 2014. Pursuant to the terms of the bank loan agreement, if, among
others, Mr. WU Shaozhang {("Mr. Wu"), the substantial shareholder of the Company, maintains less than 10% of the
beneficiat shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the Company, the loan together with accrued interest may
become immediately due and payahle. As at 31 December 2014 and up to the date of these financial statements, Mr. Wu
directly and/or indirectly holds 10.01% of the Company's shares and remains a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Nevertheless Mr. Wu has signed a deed of undertaking with the Company that he undertakes to maintain his position as a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ahility to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capiial to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Group
does not have a target gearing ratio, but has a policy of maintaining a flexible financing structure so as to be able to take
advaniage of new investment opportunities that may arise. The Gearing ratic of the Group as at 31 December 2014 of 5.34,
that equals to the Group's non-current borrowings divided by total equity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of 31 December 2014, the carrying amournis of borrowings are denominated in US$ amounted to HK$218,400,000. The
carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents are denominated in ARS, US$, HKS and others amounted to HK$3,744,000,
HK$22,420,000, HK$2,372,000 and HK$29,000 respectively.

As of 31 December 2014, total borrowings to the extent of HK$0 is at fixed interest rate, none of the foreign currency
investment are hedged by currency borrowings and other hedging instruments.

Details of the above are set out in Notes 23 & 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

LIGUEIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
The following states the fund raising activity conducted by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2014

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 11 March 2014 and 22 April 2014 ({the "Placing
Completion Ahnouncement”) and the shareholders circular dated 20 March 2014 (the “Circular”) pursuant to which the
Company raised approximately BK$149.4 million net proceeds by the issue of 682,480,000 shares. Except where the
context otherwise requires, terms defined in the Circular have the same meanings when used in this section.

A total of 682,480,000 Placing Shares had been placed o not less than six independent placees at the placing price of
HK$0.228 per Placing Share, details of which have been disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 22 April 2014.
The placing price of HK$0.228 per Placing Share represented () a discount of approximately 10.6% over the closing price of
HK$0.255 per share as gucted on the Stock Exchange on 11 March 2014, being the date of the piacing agreement; and (i) &
discount of approximately 7.3% over the closing price of HK$0.246 per share as guoted on the Stock Exchange on 7 April
2014, being the date of the SGM to approve the issue of the Placing Shares. The Directors considered the Placing represent
an oppertunity io raise capital for the Company and enlarge the equity and sharehclder base of the Company. The crdinary
resolution appsoving the share placing was passed by the shareholders of the Company at the SGM. On 22 April 2014, all
the conditions set out in the placing agreement had been fulfilled and the Placing was completed, details of which have
been disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 22 April 2014,

The net proceeds, after deduction of the placing commission and other related expenses, was approximateiy HK$14%.4
million. The Company stated in the Placing Completion Announcement that a portion of the net proceeds of the Placing
was earmarked to be used in and towards the payment of part of an indicative deposit to the Possible Vendors. The
remainder of the deposit would have had to be funded by further debt or equity financing. However, given that the
Proposed Acquisition is still under discussions, the payment of deposit has not yet been scheduled. In order to deploy
funds available to the Group more efficiently, the Cempany is reallocating part of the proceeds of the Placing instead to pay
dowr its debt fnancings raised in 2012 and 2013 that primarily funded or refinanced borrowings for the Group's cil and gas
nroject in Argentina and working capital, as this can help reduce the gearing of and borrowing costs to the Group and the
balance in and towards general working capital and professional fees i connection with the Proposed Acquisition. As such,
it has been disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 30 September 2014 regarding “Change In Use Of
Proceeds In Relation To New Shares Issued Under Specific Mandate” {the “Change In Use Of Proceeds
Announcement”), ' '
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The revisad use of the het proceeds, HK$149.4 million, as stated in the Change Iz Use Of Proceeds Announcement, would
be applied as to () approximately Hk$17.4 million for the professional fees to be incurred in the Propesed Acquisition; {i)
approximately HK$94.6 millicn for paying down the Company's debt financing as mentioned above; and (il the remaining
balance of approximately HK$37.4 million as general working capital of the Company. Accordingly, the actual use of the net
proceads raised under the Placing were all used as intended as at 31 December 2014,

Reference is also made to the announcement of the Company dated 8 January 2015 (Update On Possible Acquisition Of
Target Oil And Gas Properties Iz The United States Of America) in relation to the Propesed Acquisition, whilst the Company
has continted to work with the Possibie Vendors, recent significant decreases in oil price and the lack of visibility on near
1o medium term prospects of a sustained rebound in such prices are presenting chaflenges in pursuing the Proposed
Acquisition based on the basic purchase price range set out in the MOU entered into between the parties in November
2¢12. the Company and the Possible Vendors will decide whether or not i is desirable to resume negotiations for a
possible revised terms after oil prices stabilise.

Save for the equity fund raising exercise as stated above, the Company has not undertaken any other fund raising activity
for the year ended 31 December 2014, ‘

The Company plans to raise additional funds to finance its general working capital requirements in the coming year. Fund
raising activities under consideration includes and are not limited to issue by way of rights, issue of convertible notes,
placement of shares and/or other means of financing activities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2014, the following assets were pledged to secure the Group’s bank borrowings and barking facilities:

{a) The entire stock capital of EP Energy whose principal asset is the 72% equity interest in the joint venture company
formed under the New IV Agreement.

(b  The entire issued share capital of Have Result,

{c) The entire issued share capital of two whally-owned subsidiaries of the Company which together hold the erttire stock

capital of EP Energy.
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NON-EXEGUTIVE CHAIRMAN
Mr. HO King Fung, Eric, Non-Executive Chairman, aged 38

Mr. Ho is EPY's Non-executive Chairman, Mr, Ho joined EPI as Non-executive Director on 4 April 2613 and was re-designated
as the Non-executive Chairman on 30 July 2013.

Mr. Ho has extensive experience in investment banking origination, capital markets and legal practice. Prior to joining EPI,
he was an analyst at JP Morgan in 2000 and then was a solicitor at Linklaters between 2003 and 2006. Between 2007 ahd
2010, Mr. Ho worked at Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch and his tast position held was vice president and the head of
Hong Kong and Macau Crigination.

Mr. Ho is a committee member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Bejjing, a rcle which he has
been in since 2008. He is also the president of the Macau Money Exchangers’ Association. Mr. Ho was awarded the
Chinese Economics Elite Award in 2009, From April 2011 and April 2012, Mr. Ho was the non-executive director of United
Energy Group Limited (HKSE Stock Code; 467). He has been appointed as the independent non-executive director of Nature
Home Holding Company Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 2083) since May 2011, And, Mr. Ho has also been appoinied as a non-
executive director of AGTech Holdings Limited {HKSE Stock Code: 8279) since 23 May 2013. in Macau, Mr, Ho is the
chairman of P&W Money Changer Limited and Jing Yang Company Limited, and an executive director of Mascarge (Macall)
Company Limited.

Mr. Ho graduated from the University of New South Wales, Australia with a Bachelor of Commerce degree, majoring in
Finance. Mr. Ho has aiso obtained his Bacheior of Laws degree from the University of New South Wales. He has been
designated as a practicing solicitor in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

EXEGUTIVE DIREGTORS
Mr. TSE Kwok Fai, Sammy, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, aged 51

Mr. Tse joined the Company in 2009 as a consultant for the business development in Argentina and has been appointed as
the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since April 2013.

Mr. Tse's wealth of managerial and executive experience is derived from working at various major corporations including
the Hongkong Telecom 2 Group, Hutchison Whampoa Group and South China Group. He had been involved in the day-to-
day operations of telecommunications, technology, media, energy and resources businesses in Hong Kong, the PRC and
other countries. Mr. Tse has developed an extensive business network in the resources and energy sector and specializes
in mergers and acguisitions, listings and asset injections, as well as business development.

Mr. Tse graduated from the University of Hong Kong majoring in Geography and Geology. He alsc obtained his MBA from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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Mr. GHAN Chi Hung, Anthony, Executive Director, aged 42

Mr. Chan is EPI's Executive Director and he was appointed as Executive Director on July 2013.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr, Chan has held senior managemerst positions at other Hong Xong listed companies. He
was the exacutive director of China Financial Leasing Group Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 2312) from April 2007 to July 2013.
Mr. Chan has also held tha position of non-executive director at Build King Holdings Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 240) since
December 2008, -

In December 2014, Mr. Chan was appointed as independent non-executive director of South East Group Limited {HKSE
Stock Code: 726). Prior to his managerial career, Mr. Chan was the investment manager of Springfield Financial Advisory
timited, in charge of private equity, fund-of-funds and fixed income investment portfolios for four years. Mr. Chan started
his career as a banker in 1.P. Morgan covering Asia ex-Japan region.

Mr. Chan is a graduate of the University of Minnescta — Twin Cities and Stanford Graduate School of Business, both in
United States.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. QIAN Zhi Hui, Independent Non-executive Director, aged 52

Mr. Qian joined the Company in September 2008, He joined China National Native Produce & Animal By-Preducts Import &
Export Corporation, Guangdong Province, as chief legal advisor in 1988. He jeined Guangzheu King Pound Law Firm as a
lawyer in 1993 and is currently a partner of Guangdong Justwin Law Firm. From 2006 to 2008, he was an indepandent non-
executive director of New Times Energy Corporaticn Limited (HKSE stock code: 166}, He has a Master degree in Procedural
Law from Southwest University of Political Science and Law, China,

Mr. ZHU Tiansheng, Independent Non-executive Director, aged 70

Mr. Zhu joined the Company in November 2009. He has over 41 years extensive experience in project management,
operations, design and construction process of od and natural gas transmission pipeline, exploration, production and
transporting heavy cil, recycling of light hydrocarbon, design and construction of natural gas treatment plants in humerous
oil field projects in Chira.

Mr. Zhu has been employed by China National Offshore Qil Corporation ("CNOOC") since 1986, Sinca 2C05, hs is the Serior
Consultant and the Chief Project Officer for China Offshore Oif & Gas Development & Utitization Company of CNOOC,
participating in the construction of asphalt plant. From 2004 t¢ 2005, he was the Deputy Director of Coordination Office of
CNOOC and Mr. Fu Chengyu, was the director and currently the General Manager of CNOOC.
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From 2001 to 2004, My, Zhu was the General Manager of China Ocean Qilfields Services {Heng Kong) Limited. During the
period of 1997 to 200%, Mr. Zhu was the General Manager of the Construction Department of CNOOC. The Construction
Department was responsible for the organization and investigatiors of concept design and plans of development, an
immediate and final investigation of the basic design. The detailed designs, constructions and installations were managed
hy the Project Units, which were organized by the Construction Department. The Construction Department aiso organized
and cooperated with foreign companies for the development and construction of oil and gas fields.

From 1992 to 1997, Mr. Zhu was the Deputy Manager of Development and Production Department of CNOOC and he was
responsible for construction: development. During the period of 1986 to 1992, he was offered the position of Chief of Project
Management Office of Construction Department of CNOOC. '

In 1986, Mr. Zhu was transferred to CNOOC from Liache Oif Fiald, China where he had worked there for over 11 years in the
70s and his last position was the Chief of Oil and Gas Management Office of Liaohe Oil Field.

Mr. Zhu graduated from the Beifing Petroleum Institute and was majoring in oil and gas storage and transportation
angineering since 1969, During his work tenor, Mr. Zhu was trained in Japan for 3 months in recycling of light hydrocarbon
and studied project management in £GT in United Kingdom during 1994.

Wr. TEQH Chun Ming, Independent Non-executive Director, aged 44

Mr. Teoh joined the Company in January 2014. He is currently a non-executive director of Nature Home Holding Company
Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 2083) since July 2012 and the chief financiat officer and company secretary of Joyer Auto HK
Company Limited. Mr. Teoh joined Nature Home Helding Company Limited in 2008 and was appointed as the chief financial
officer and the company secretary on 1 September 2008 and 26 March 2009 respectively, Mr, Teoh was also the authorised
reprosentative of Naiture Home Holding Company Limited for the purpose of the Rules governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”} and The Companies Ordinance. Mr. Teoh held the positions
of chief financiai officer, company secretary and authorised representative of Nature Home Holding Company Limited untii
his appointment as a non-executive director of Nature Home Holding Company Limited on 1 July 2012. Mr. Teoh was aiso
the investor relations officar of Nature Home Holding Company Limited. Mr. Tech has over 20 years of accounting and
finance experience and had held senior positions in accounting and finance in various companies listed on The Stock
Excharge of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Teoh obtained a Master degree in Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2005, He is a
fallow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants arid a member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
Mr. TSANG Wing Hung, Company Secretary, aged 52

Mr. Tsang joined the Company in May 2013 as Vice Fresident of Finance and has been appointed as the company secretary
of the Company since June 2014.

M. Tsang is a member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tsang has been a professional accountant since 1986 and has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting, management and taxation. Mr. Tsang holds a Bachelor Degree of Economics from University of
Manchester, United Kingdom and a Master Degree of Information Management and Systems from Monash University,
Australia.

Mr. PAK Ka Kei, Financial Controller, aged 44

Mr. Pak joired the Company in Novermnber 2009 as a Finangial Controlier.,

Mr. Pak has over 18 vears experience in the fields of audit, internal control, accourtancy, taxation and treasury. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Pak had been working for TCL Muliimedia Technelogy Holdings Limited for over 10 years on the
finance departments in Hong Kong, Emerging Markets and Europe and he had held the positions of Deputy Internal Control
Director and Deputy Financial Controller for Emerging Markets and Europe there,

Mr. Pak graduated from City University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accounting and has been working
for Ernst & Young for 5 years.

Mr. QUIROGA Daniel Federico, General Manager, Argentina, aged 49

Mr. Quiroga joined the Company in December 2010 as the General Manager of Argentina Business. Mr. Quiroga oversees
the Company’s oil project in Argenting as the General Manager of Argentina Operation. He has over 28 years extensive
experience in operations, exploration and production management of off field projects in Argentina, and Mexico.

Mr. Quiroga had been employed by Tecpetrol S.A. since year 1991. The last position held by Mr. Quiroga in year 2000 was
the Head of Secondary Recovery Division. During the work in Tecpetrol S.A., Mr. Quiroga was appointed as Operation
£ngineer, Production Managey, Field Operation Manager and had gained experiences in operations, production
maragement for varicus ol fields in Argentina.

Mr. Quiroga was the Operation Superintendent and Fieid Manager who was in charge of field operations in oif fields located
in Neuguina Basin and $.J. GUIl Basin, Argentina for Pioneer NRA S.A. during 2002 to 2006. After that, Mr. Quiroga also
worked for Apache Corp Argentina and Petrolera El Trebol.

Before joining the Company, Mr. Quiroga had been working for Weatherford Regicnal Mexico as the Operation Coordinator.
He was in charge of field operations for ol field in Mexico.

Mr. Quircga graduated from the National University of Cuyo in Mendoza Province, Argentina and was majoring in Petroleum
Engineer in year 1991, Mr. Quiroga was the Postgrade in Business & Finance at National University of Cuyo in Mendoza
Province, Argentina.
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The board of Directors (the “Board”} of the Company hereby presents the Corporate Governance Report of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON GORPORATE GOVERNANGE PRACTICES

The Board recognises the importance of incorporating elements of good corporate governance into the management
structure and the internat control procedures of the Group so as to ensure that all business activities of the Group and the
decision making processes are properly regulated. During the year under review, the Company has applied the principles
and has complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Goverriance Code (the "CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the "Listing Rules”) with
daviations from the code provisicn A.4.1 of the CG Code as summarised below.

The code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. Currently the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term. However, all non-
executive directors are subject to retirement and can offer themselves for re-election in accardance with the Company’s
Bye-laws.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS ]

The Company has adopted a code of conduct rules {the “Model Code") regarding securities transactions by directors on
terms no less exactly than the required standard set out in the Mode! Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, and that having made specific enquiries of &lt directors, the
Company copfirms that all the directors have complied with the Mode! Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Group’s business is vested iny the Board. The Board is responsible for the promation of the
success of the Company by directing and guiding its affairs in an accountable and effective manner. Board members have
a duty to act in good faith, with due dilisence and care, ard in the best interests of the Company and of its shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANGE

Types of decisions taken by the Board inciude the following:
1. setiing the Company’s mission and values;
2. formulating strategic directions of the Company;

3. reviewing and guiding corporate strategies; setting performance objectives, monitaring implementation and corporate
performance;

4. monitoring and managing potertial conflicis of interests between the Board members and the management of the
Company; and

5. ensuring the integrity of the Company's accouniing and financial reporting systems, including the independent audit,
and that appropriate systems of control are in place, in particutar, systems for monitoting risk, financial control and
compliance with the law.
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The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the management for the administration and management
functions of the Group, in particular, with respect to circumstances where managerent should report back and obtain prior
approvals from the Beoard before making decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board
reviews these arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

For the vear ended 31 December 2014, the Board.:

1. reviewed and approved the audited annual resulis of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the
unaudited interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2014;

2. reviewed the performance of and formulated the business strategies of the Group;

3. reviewed the internal controls of the Group;

4.  reviewed and approved the new shares placing of 682,480,000 shares at HK$0,228 per share under specific mandate;
5. reviewed and approved the price-sensitive transactions.

Regular Beard meetings are scheduled in advance to give all directors an opportunity to attend. All directors are kept
informed on a timely basis of major changes that may affect the Group's businesses, including relevant rules and
regulations. Directors have full access to information on the Group and are able to obtain independent professional advice
whenever deemed necessary. No request was made by any director for such independent professiorial advice in 2014. The
company secretary prepares minutes and keeps records of matters discussed and of decisions resolved at all Board
meetings, which are available for inspections by any director upen reguest.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises one Non-exacutive Chairman, two Executive Directors and three Independent Non-
executive Directors, whose biographical details are set out in “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on page 16. The
composition of the Board is well balanced with each director having sound knowledge, experience and expertise relevant
to the business operations and developments of the Group. The Company has also adepted the recommended best
practice under the CG Code for having at least one-third of its Board members being independent non-executive directors.

All directors are aware of their collective and individual responsibilities to the sharehciders and have exercised their duties
with care, skill and diligence contributing to the successful performance of the Group.
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BOARD MEETING RECORDS

There were eight meetings held during the financial year 2014 and the aitendance summazy of each Board member is as
follows:

Number of

board meetings

Name of Directors attended in 2014
M. Ho King Fung, Eric 8/8
Mr. Tse Kwok Fai, Sammy 8/8
Mr. Chan Chi Hung, Anthony 8/8
Mr. Qian Zhi Hui &/8
Mr. Teoh Chun Ming {appeinted on 10 January 2014) 7/8
Mr. Lam Ting Lok {appointed on 4 Aprit 2013 and resigned on 10 Januaty 2014) N/A
Mr. Zhu Tiansheng 778

GCHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The CG Code requires the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer be separate and not performed by the same
individual to ensure there is a clear division of responsibilities between the running of the Board and the executives who
run the business.

The Chairman’s responsibility is to provide leadarship o the Board and to formulate the Group's business strategies. Mr. Ho
King Fung, Eric (“Mr. Ho") is the Non-executive Chairmar of the Company. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the
day to day operation of the Company and the implementation of the development strategy adopted by the Board. Mr. Tse
Kwok Fai, Sammy (“Mr. Tse") is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

The code provision A.2.2 of the CG Code stipuiates that the chairman should ensure that all directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at board mestings and the code provision A.2.3 of the CG Code stipulates that the chairmarn should be
responsible for ensuring that directors receive adequate information, which must be complete and reliable, in a timely
mantier. Both Mr. Ho and Mr. Tse had complied with the relevant CG Code.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE THREGTORS

Independent Non-executive Directors serve the relevant function of bringing independent iudgment on the development,
performance and risk managament of the Group. The Independent Non-executive Directers of the Company have been
appointed to hold office until the next Annual General Meeting and shall retire and offer themselves for re-election
gecording to the Company's Bye-laws.

All Independent Non-executive Directors are financially independent from the Company and from any of its subsidiaries.
Fach of the Independent Non-executive Director has provided semiannually & written confirmation to the Company

confirming that he has mel the criteria as set out in Ruie 3.13 of the Listing Rules regarding the guidelines for the
assessment of the independence of being an independent non-executive director.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the foliowing committees with defined terms of refererce:

1. Corporate Governance Commitiee

2. Audit Commitiee

3. Remuneration Comimitiee

4, Nominatior: Commitiee

Each hoard cormnmittee makes decisions on matters within its terms of reference and applicable limit of authority. The terms
of reference as well as the structure and membership of each committee wili be reviewed from time to fime.

(1) Corporate Governance Commitiee

(a) . Members of the Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. Ho King Fung, Eric (Chalrman of the Comimittes, appointed on 31 March 2014)
Mr. Chan Chi Hung, Anthony (appoirted on 317 March 2014)

(b} Role and function

The Corporate Governanice Commitiee is mainiy responsible for:

fii.

daveioping and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
managemert;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legat and regulatory
requirements;

developing, reviewing and menitoring the code of conduct and compliance manuat (if any) applicable to
Directors and employess; and

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code provisicn of Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
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{c)

Meeting records

The Corporate Governance Committee was established on 31 March 2014. One meeting was held during tne
financizal year 2014 and the attendance summary of each committee member is as follows:

Number of

committee meeting(s)

Members of the Committee attended in 2014
Mr. Ho King Fung, Eric 171
Mr. Chan Chi Hung, Anthony 1/1

During the meeting, the Corporate Governance Committee reviewed the duties and responsibilities of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, Directors’ attendance at Board meetings, the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors and the training and professional development of the Directors.

(2) Audit Committee

{a)

()

Members of the Audit Committee

Mr. Teoh Chun Ming (Chairman of the Committee, appointed on 10 January 2014)

Mr. Lam Ting Lok (appointed on 4 April 2013, redesignated as Chairman of the Committee
on 3 July 2013 and resigned on 10 January 2014}

Mr. Qian Zhi Hui

Mr. Zhu Tiansheng

Role and function

The Audit Committee is mainly responsibie for:

i reviewing the financial statements and annual reports and considering any significant or unusual items
raised by the external auditor hefore submission to the Board,

ii. reviewing the relationship with the external auditor by reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their feas and terms of engagement, and making recommendations o the Board on the appointment,
reappoirtment and removal of external auditor;

i,  reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's financial reporting system, interat control
and risk management system and associated procedures;

iv.  reviewing the Group's financial and accounting policies; and

v.  reviewing the external auditor's management letter and ensuring a timely response to the issues raised
there,
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Meeting records

Three meetings were heid during the financial year 2014 and the attendance summary of each committee
member is as follows:

Number of

committee meetings

Members of the Committee attended in 2014
Mr. Teoh Chun Ming (appointad on 10 January 2014} 3/3
Mr. Lam Ting Lok {resigried on 10 January 2074) N/A
Mr. Gian Zhi Hui ) 3/3
Mr. Zhu Tianshehg 3/3

During the meetings, the Audit Committee discussed the foliowing matters:

{.  Financial Reporting

The Audit Committee reviewed with the Chief Executive Officer and the financial controiler of the
Company the audited results for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the unaudited interim resuits for
the six months ended 20 June 2014.

i  External Auditor

The Audit Committee reviewed the audit fee for the year ended 31 December 2013 and recommended it
to the Board.

The Audit Commitiee reviewed the Audit Committee Report prepared by PricewaterhouseCoopers for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

{3) Remuneration Committee

{a)

Members of the Remuneration Committee

Mr. Glan Zhi Hui (Chairman of the Comimittee)

Mr. Ho King Fung, Etic @ppointed on 31 March 2014)
Mr. Tse Kwok Fai, Sammy

Mr. Zhu Tiansheng
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{b) Role and function

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsitle for:

i, reviewing and approving the managemeni’s remuneration proposals with reference to the corporate
goals and objectives of the Board;

ii.  determining the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and senior management, and
recommending to the Board on the remuneration packages of individusl executive directors and senior
managerment;

ifi.  recommending to the Board the remuneration of non-executive directors,

iv.  making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and the structure of all remuneration of
the directors and senior management as well as on the establishment of formal and transparent
procedures for developing policy on such remuneration;

v.  reviewing and approving the compensation payable to executive directers and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that such compensation
is determined in accordance with relevant contractual terms and that such compeansation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company; and

vi.  ensuring that no director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his or her own remuneration.

{c) Meeting records

Two meetings was held during the financial year 2014 and the attendance summary of each commiitee
member is as follows:

Number of

committee meetings

Membetrs of the Committee attended in 2014

" MIr, Qian Zhi Hui ' : 242
Mr. Ho King Fung, Eric (appointed on 31 March 2014) /2
Mr. Tse Kwok Fai, Sammy 2/2
Mr, Zhu Tiansheng 2/?

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the policies for the remuneration of the
directors and senior management of the Group, the staff costs and the headcount of the Group. The
Rernuneration Committee also reviewed the remunaration package of the directors and sertior management {c
ensure they were in fine with the market.
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(4) Nomination Committee

{a)

(b)

{c)

Members of the Nomination Committee

Mr. Qian Zhi Kui {Chairman of the Committec)

Mr. Ho King Fung, Eric (appointed on 31 March 2014)
Mr. Tse Kwok Fai, Sammy

Mr. Zhu Tiasisheng

Role and function

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for:

i, raviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowtedge and experience) of the
Board on a regular basis and making recommendations to the Board regarding any preposed changes;

i. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

ii. assessing the independence of the independent non-executive directors; and

iv. making recommendaticns to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer.

Meeting Records

One meeting was held during the financial year of 2014 and the attendance summary of each committee
member is as follows:

Number of

committee meetings

Members of the Committee attended in 2014
Mr. Qian Zhi Hui 171
Mr. Ho King Fung, Eric {appoinfed on 31 March 2014} N/A
Mr. Tse Kwok Fai, Sammy 111

Mr. Zhu Tiansheng il
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements of each financial year, which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. The directors also ensure that the financial statements of the Group are prepared in
accordance with the siatutory reguirements and applicable accounting policiss.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors consider that the financial statements of the Group are prepared on a
going concern basis and appropriate accounting pelicies have been consistently applied. The directors have also made
judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable in the preparation of the financial statements.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISIKK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the Group's systems of internal control so as to maintain sound and effective controls to
safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the assets of the Group.

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group. This process includes continuous updating of the internal control systems of the Group in response 10 the changing
business environment and regulatory requirements. The Board is also conducting a review of the internal controls of the
Group to ensure that the policies and procedures in place are adequate.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

From 1 July 2013 onwards, Upon appointment to the Board, Directors receive an induction package including “A Guide on
Directors’ Duties” issuad by the Companies Registry, “Good Governance and Internal Conirol — A Corruption Prevention
Guide for Listed Companies” issuted by Independent Commission Against Corruption, Hong Xong, "A Guide for Effective
Audit Committees” issued by HKSA Corporate Governance Committees and information regarding the duties and
responsibilities of a director of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, from the Company's legai
adviser on directors’ legal role and respensibitities.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills for discharging their duties and responsibilities as Directors. For the yvear ended 31 December 2014, all
Directors have attended the training sessions arranged by the Company, except Mr. Qian Zhi Hui as he was away on
business.

INSURANCE ARRANGEMENT

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and Senior
Management.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year endad 31 December 2014, the Company engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers, auditor of the Company, to
perform audit service. Their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are set out in the
Independent Auditor's Repaort on page 38 of this annual report.

Duiting the vear under review, the services provided by PricewaterholseCocpers and the fees thereof were as follows:

2014
- HK$'000

-Nature of services: - -

Audit services
Norn-audit related services

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Wing Hung was appointed as the Company Secretary following the resignation of Mr. Cheng Sing Wai, the former
Company Secretary with effect from 5 June 2014,

The Company Secretary directly reports to the Board and is responsible for facilitating the Board's processes and
communications ameng Board members, with sharsholders and with management. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
the Company Secretary Undertook 18 hours of professional training to keep abreast of latest legislative and regulatory
changes.

COMMUNIGATION WITH SHAREHGLDERS

The Company uses various communication methods to ensure its sharehelders are kept well informed of key business
imperatives. These include general meetings, annual report, various notices, announcements and circulars. The poll voting
procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll were included in all circulars accompanying notices convening
general meeting and the detailed procedures for conducting a poll have been read out by the company secretary at al
general meetings.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Non-executive
Chairman, the Executive Directors, the chairman and the members of the board committees and the external auditor will
be available to answer guestions at the meeting. To ensure all shareholders timety access to important corporate
information, the Gompany utilizes its corporate website to disseminate to the shareholders information such as
announcements, circulars, annual and interim reports. :
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REPORT OF
THE DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company {the "Directors") have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the petroleum expioration and
production. Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set cut in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements. The analysis of the principal activities and segments of the operations of the Group is set out in Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements,

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The resuits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set cut in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 40. :

No interim dividend was declared {2013: Nil) and the Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year.

FINANGIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liahilities of the Group for the last five financial vears is sst out on page 115.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements and the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 45 respectively.

SHARE GAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in Note 24 o the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2014,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Cornpany is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance standards to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set cut on page 20 under Corporate
Governance Report.
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|
THRECTORS ;

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are as foliows:

Non-executive Chairman:

Mr. Ho King Fung, Eric

Executive Directors:

Mr. Tse Kwok Fai, Sammy (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Chi Hung, Anthony

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Qian Zhi Hui

Mr. Teoh Chun Ming (appointed ofi 10 January 2014
Mr. Zhu Tiansheng

Mr. Lam Ting Lok fresigned on 10 January 2014

Riographical detaits of the Directors are set out on page 16 under “Directors and Senior Management Profile”.

In accordance with Article 99(A) of the Company’s bye-laws, all Directors, except the Managing Director, shall retire and,
heing eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws.

The Company has received from each of the independent Non-executive Directors biannuaily confirmations of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Listing Rules"} and considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE GONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN GONTRAGTS

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a

material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Diractors or their respactive assoclates {as defined in the Listing Rules} has ar interest in a business, which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and adminisiration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the vear.
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DIRECTORS’ AND GHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in any
shares of the Company (the “Shares"), underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated -
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Grdinance ("SFO™); which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions in which they were taken or desmed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were required pursiant to
the Model Cede for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed ssuers of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Gompany

- -Numberof  Nuf
- _ofdinary are.
“shares hield  optionsheld -

Mr. Ho King Fung, Eric Personal - 217,000,000 217,000,000 4.47%
Mr. Tse Kwok Fai, Sammy Personal 2,200,000 88,000,000 90,200,000 1.86%
Mr. Chan Chi Hung, Anthony Personal - 78,000,000 78,000,000 1.67%

Note: The calculation of percentages is based on 4,852,357 588 Shares ini Issue as at 31 December 2014,

save as disclosed above and as at 31 December 2014, no Directors or chief executive of the Company had any other
interests or short position in the Shares, underiying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corperations {within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO} which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to be have under such provisions} or which were required, pursiant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein or which were required in the Listing Ruies pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2014, according to the register of interests maintained by the Company pursuant o section 334 of the
SFO and so far as is known to, or ¢an be ascertained after reasonable enguiry by the Directors or chief exacutive of the
company, the following persons, other than the Directors and the chief executive of the Comparny, who had an interest or a
short position in the shares or underiying shares of the Company which would fal? to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who were, directly or indirectly, deemed to be interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general mestings of
any other mamber of the Group and the amaunt of each of such person’s interests in such securities, together with
particulars of any options in respect of stich capital are as foltows:

Long/Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

nature of interest

City Smart international Investment Long Bereficial owner 7,466,856 0.15%
Limited {(Note 2}
City Wise Investment Limited (Note 2} Long Beneficial owner 478,232 975 9.86%
South America Petroleum Investinent Long Interest of a controlied 478,232,975 9.86%
Holdings Limited (Note 2) corporation
Mir. Wu Shaozhang {(Note 2} tong Interest of a controlled 485,699,831 10.01%
corporation
Notes:

1. The calculation of percentages is based on 4,852,357,588 Shares in Issue as at 31 December 2014,

2. So far as Is known to the Directors, City Smart International iInvestment Limited, South America Petroleurn Investment Holdings Lirsited and City Wise
Investment Limited are beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Shaozhang.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014 and so far as s known to, or can be ascertained after reasonable
enquiry by the Directors or chief executive of the Company, no persons had interests or shost positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who were, directly or indirectly, deemed to be interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in alf circumstances at general meetings of any mermber of the Group or
had any options in respect of such capital.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted for a period of 10 years cornmencing 6 Novemnber 2004
pursuant to an Ordinary Resolution passed at the Special General Meeting of the shareholders held on 6 November 2006 for
the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to selected directors and employees for their coniribution to the Group.

Under the Scheme, the Company may grant options to selected directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant share
options to eligible vendors, customers, advisors and consultants tc the Company and its subsidiaries at the discretion of
the Board of Directors.

The totai number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%.
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point of time, without pricr approval from the Company's shareholders; nor to
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any individual in any cne year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the

. shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options
grantad to substantial shareholders, Independent Non-executive Directors, or any of their respective associates {including a
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include a substantial shareholders, Indepandent Non-executive Directors, or
any of their respective associates) in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value in excess of
HK$5,000,000 must also be approved by the Company's shareholders.

The exercise price of the share apticns is determinable by the Directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Shares on the date of the offer of the share options which must be a business day; (i) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
the offer; and (i) the nominal value of the Company's shares.
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As at 31 December 2014, options to subscribe for an aggregate of 1,204,600,000 shares granted to the Directors, certain
employees and other participants pursuant to the Scheme remainad outstanding, details of which are as follows;

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

“Category and-— -
name.af participant(s) =+

“Date of grane

Non-executive Chainnan

Mr. Ho King Fung, Eric 30 July 2013 16 September 2013~ 0.206 108,500,000 - - 108,500,000
{Note 1) 29 July 2014
16 September 2014~ 0206 54,250,000 - - 54,250,000
29 July 2016
16 September 2015 0.206 54,250,000 - - 54,250,000
29 July 2016
Executive Directors
M. Tse Kwok Fa, Sammy 11 Aprl 2013 3 July 2013~ 0.255 88 00,000 - - §8,000,00G
{Note 2) 10 April 2016
Mr. Chan Chi Hung, Anthony 30 July 2013 16 Septembear 2013- 0.204 33,000,000 - - 39,000,000
{Note 1} 29 luly 2016.
16 September 2014— 0206 19,500,000 - - 19,500,600
2 Iy 2016
16 September 2015~ 0.206 19,500,000 - - 19,500,000
29y 2016
Entployees 25 Movember 2013 25 Movermber 2013- 0219 64,000,000 - {7.000,000) 57,000,000
24 Novemnber 2016
17 Juty 2014 17 luly 2014- 0.200 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
16 July 2017
othet participants 11 April 2013 11 April 213- 0.255 128,000,000 - - 128,000,000
10 April 2014
11 April 2013 1 Aprl 2013- 0.255 32,000,000 - (32,000,0000 -
28 February 2014
25 November 2013 25 Novernber 2613 0.219 32,000,000 - - 32,000,000
24 November 2016
25 Movemnber 2013 25 February 2014 0219 64,000,000 - - 4,000,000
24 November 2014
4 June 2014 4 June 2014 0.189 - 70,000,000 - 73,000,000
3 e 2017
17 uly 2014 17 luly 214 0.200 - 467,000,600 - 467,000,000
16.July 2017
703,000,000 540,000,000 {3%,000,000) 1,204,000,000

Mote 1;  Date of approval by sharehclders was 16 September 2013,

Note 2. Date of approval by sharehclders was 3 July 2013.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the human resources depariment on: the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to factors including the Group's operating results, their
responsibifities and comparable market statistics. Details of the Directors’ fees and emoluments, and the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as
foliows: :

Sales

— the largest customer 100%
— five largest customers combined 100%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 100%
— five largest suppliers combined 100%

None of the Directors and their assaciates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers or suppliers as noted above,

EMPLOYEES

As at 3T December 2014, the Group had a total of 17 employees in Hong Kong and 8 employees in Argenina. Employee’s
cost (excluding directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$12.1 million (2013: HK23.45 million). The Group
ensures that the pay levels of its employees are competitive according to market trend and its employess are rewardad on
a performance related basis within the general #amework of the Group's salary and bonus systern,

- PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would obiige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly avaitable to the Company and within the knowiedge of
the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued share capital was held by the Public.
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AUDIT CONMMITTEE

The Audit Commitiee has reviewed the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and also discussed
auditing, internal controls and financiat reporting matters, including the review of the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014 with external auditor PricewatsrhouseCoopers and with management.

AUDITORS

Deioitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as auditor of the Company during year 2013, Pursuant to a board resolution dated 15
lanuary 2014, PricewaterhouseCocpers was appointed by the Board to act as the new auditor of the Company.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 Decermber 2014 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will
retire and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual gerneral meeting ("AGM").

A resclution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM of the Compaity.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING YEAR

Details of significant events occurring after the date of statement of financial position are set out in Note 36 to the
conselidated financial statements.

On behalf of the Board

Tse Kwok Fai, Sammy
Executive Director and CEO

Hong Kong, 27 March 2615
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EPI (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
incorporated in Bermuda with limited flability}

We have audited the consolidated financial staternents of EPI {Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to 114, which comprise the ecansolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consclidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view iny accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Keng Institute of Certified Public
Accouniants and the disclosure reguirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for suich internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enabie the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S BESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibifity is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report our
cpinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other
purpose. We do not assume respoensibility towards o accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures i the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk
assassments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statemerits
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on tha effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit aiso inciudes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
wall as evaluating the overall presentation of the consclidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtainad is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit cpinion.

g

) PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwehk.com
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EPI (HOLDINGS) LEIMITED — continued
(incorporated in Bermudaawith limited liability)

OPINION

In our apinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair viaw of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financiat Reporting Standards and have been properiy prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Crdinance.

EMPHASES OF MATTER

We draw attention tc Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated financial statements which states that the Group incurred a loss
attributable 1o the owners of the Company of approximately HK$321,143,000 and had a net operating cash cutflow of
approximately HK$51,162,000 duzring the year ended 31 December 2014, and as at that dage, the Group's current abilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately HK$76,722,000. These conditions, aiong with other matters as described in
Note 2.1.7 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this
matter.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cerfified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
i : HK$'000 . ":HK§'000
Continuing operation:
Revenue 6 . 85689 89,853
Purchases, processing and related expensas .(38.;._38_{1..). (44,333)
Other (losses)/gains, net 7 : (‘16542) : 13,689
Wages, salaries and other benefits . (34,253) (56,201)
Depreciation and depletion S (18,043) (27,443)
Provision of impairment losses 9 i (73,576) (492,648)
Fair value gains/{losses) on financial instruments 10 49,109 (18,402)
Expenses incurred in exploring potential investment opportunities (25,260) (16,248)
Other expenses (73,783) (69,623)
Finance costs 11 (34,693) (43,757)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year from continuing operation 13 : 180233) (665,113)
Discontinued operation:
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year from SRR
a discontinued operation 5 i 1(200,910) (14,058}
Loss and total comprehensive loss attributable to the owners of T
the Company : 0 (381,143) (679,171)
Basic and diluted loss per share attributable fo owners of the Company
(expressed in HKS per share) 14
— From continuing operation (HK$) 0.19)
— From discontinued operation (HK$) -
— From loss for the year (HKS$) 0.19)

The niotes on pages 47 to 114 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2014

i
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF }
\
|

Assets

Non-current assets . L

Exploration and evaluation assets 16 7115222 206,271
Property, plant and equipment 17 138,422 153,458
Other tax recoverables 19 17,563 - 28,542
388,271

Current assets S
“Trade and other receivables and prepayments 21 45,928 227,192
Other tax recoverables 19 50716,140 12,753
Held-for-trading investments 2 B2 98
Cash and cash equivalents 23 128,565 48,029
" 90,685 288,072

Total assets : _.36.1_.'.89_:2 ::_ 676,343
Equity B
Share capital 24 2 7AB5,236 - 416,988
Reserves . (a54,551) (198,802)
Total equity 130,685 218,186
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 27 218,400
Corwvertible notes 28 76,054
Derivative financial liabilities 28, 29 58,903
Other non-current liabilities 1,410
354,767 - |
Current liabilities
|
Trade and other payables 30 33,790 ‘
Borrowings 27 56,600 |
Convertible notes 28 8,000
Derivative financial liabilities 78,29 -

103,390
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2014

 HK$'000. - HK§'000®
Total liabilities 131,207 158,157
Total equity and fiabilities : 361892 676,343
Net current (liabilities)/assets i (76722) 184,682
Total assets less current liahilities £ 194485 .' 572,953

The notes on pages 47 to 114 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financiat statements on pages 40 to 114 were approved by the Board of Directors ort 27 March 2015 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Tse Kwok Fai, Sammy Chan Chi Hung, Anthony

Director Director
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FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2014

TR

 Note - 2014
S THKS'000

Assets
Non-current assets .
Property, plant and equipment 17 1,231
lnvestments in subsidiaries 18 8
1,239
Current assets ‘. i
Other receivables 21 i B77 596
Amounts due from subsidiaries 8. 427,955 - 715,539
Cash and cash equivalents 23 : 21,179
737,314
Total assets 738,553
Equity
Share capital 24 416,988
Resefves 26 {210,910}
Total equity 206,078
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 27 218,400
Convertible notes 28 76,054
Derivative financial liabilities 28, 29 58,903
353,357
Current liabilities
Other payables 30 23,704
Amounts due to suibsidiaries _ 18 90,814
Borrowings ' 27 56,600
Convertible notes ‘ 28 - 8,000
Derivative financial liabilities 28,29 0. -

179,118
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2014

Total liahilities 532,475
Total equity and liabilities L aas957. 738,553
Net current assets . ‘185102 558,196
Total assets less current liabilities : 186.‘128 559,435

The notes on pages 47 to 114 are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 40 to 114 were approved by the Beard of Directors on 27 March 2015 and
are signed on its behalf

Tse Kwok Fai, Sammy Chan chi Hung, Anthony
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2014

re - Contruted

o surplus

re options - Accumulate

o losses]

o HKE000. o HREN
,,,,, oot o

Balance at 1 January 2013 313,038 4022 678 60,322 39,741 (3,762,183 - 673,602
Loss and fotal comprehensive loss

for the year - - - - (679,171} 679,179
Issie of shares Upon placements (Note (b) 77 500 53,748 - - - 131,248
Share Issue expenses - {5,004) - - - {6,006)
Isstie of shares upon conversion of

convertible notes 12450 16,354 - - - 28,804
Isstie of shares upon exercise

of share options 14,000 12,306 - {6,566} - 19,740
Recognition of equity settled share-based

payments - - - 48,969 - 48,969
Balance at 31 December 2013 416,988 4,100,080 60,322 82,150 (4,443,354) 218,186
Balance at 1 January 2014 416,988 4,100,080 60,322 82,150 (4,441,354 218,186
Loss and total comprehensive loss

for the year - - - - (381,143) (381,143)
Issue of shares upan placements {Note (o) 68,248 87357 - - - 155,605
Share issue expanses - (5,639} - - - (5,639
Recogrition of equity setiled share-based

payments - - - 43,676 - 43,674
Balance at 31 Dacamber 2014 485,236 4,181,798 60,322 125,826 (4,822,497) 30,685

Notes:

(a The contributed surplus reseive represents the credit arising from the capital reduction in 2006.

) Dwing the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company completed cne placement by which total of 682,480,000 (2013 775,000,000) shares of the

Company were issuad. Detalls of the placements are set out in Note 24.

The notes or pages 47 to 114 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 Becember 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used ir: operations

(91,687)

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and aguipment
Interest recefved

(91,687)

(27,720

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

(27,7203

Proceeds from issue of new shares 146,000
Proceeds from exercise of share options § 19,740
Proceeds from other loans e 5,335
Interest paid (19,213 (28,670)
Repayrment of other loans - 2(2,000) {45,743)
Repayment of bank borrowings T (54,600): (23,400)
Share issue expenses L (5,639) (5,006)
Proceeds from issuie of convertibie notes A% 100,000
Redemption of convertible notes -
Expenseas on issuance of convertible notes (3,500)
Net cash generated from financing activities 164,756
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 45,349
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2,680
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 23 48029

The notes on pages 47 to 114 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

GENERAL INFORMATION

EPI (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group®) are principally engaged in the
petroleum exploration and production.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong doilars ("HK$"), unless ctherwise stated. These financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2015,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the vears presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS™. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of held-for-trading investments and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through consclidated profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

2.1.1 Going concern

The Group incurred a loss attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately HK$381,143,000
and had a net oparating cash ouiflow of approximately HK$51,162,000 during the year end 31 December
2014. As at 31 December 2014, the Group's current liabilities exceaded its current asseis by approximately
HK$76,722,000, and its cash and cash equivalents balance was reduced to approximately Hk$28,565,000.
in addition, the Group had total borrowirgs of approximately HK$281,277,000, consisting of convertible
notes of approximately HK$62,877,000 {the "2013 CN") and a bank loan of approximately HK$218,400,000
as at 31 December 2014, Total borrowings amounting to approximately HK$117,477,000, including the
current portion of bank loan of approximately HK$54,600,000 and the 2013 CN of approximately
HK$62,877,000, wilt be due for repayment within twelve months from the statement of financial position
date.

Purslant to the bank loan agreement of the bank loan of approximately HK$218,400,000, the Group is
required to comply with certain requirements, including to maintain Mr.Wu Shaozhang ("Mr.Wu") as a
substantial shareholder of the Company as defined under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
("Substantial Shareholder™ {Note 27). A Substantial Shareholder is one who is entitled to exercise or
conirol the exercise of 10% or more of the voiing power at any general meeting of the Company. The
failure to comply with such requirements would constitute an event of default, which may cause the
relevant bank loan totalling HK$218,400,000 bacome immediately repayable.

Ali of the ahove conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt o the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED
2.1 Basis of preparation — continued

2.1.1 Going concern — continued

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections, which cover a period of
twelve months from 31 December 2014. The directors are of the opinion that, iaking into account the
following, the Group wili have sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due within the next twelve months from the statement of financial position date:

(0

{4)

On 8 lanuary 2015, the Company entered into an amendment deed with the 2013 CN holder to
extend the maturity date of the 2013 €N issuiad by the Company on 11 April 2013 for one year from
11 April 2015 to 11 Aprit 2016, On 17 February 2015, an ordinary resolution was passed by the
Company's shareholders at the special general meeting to approve the amendment deed.

On 26 March 2015, Mr. Wu entered into a deed of undertaking with the Cornpany and undertakes (i)
at ali times to maintain his position as the Substantial Shareholder, and (i} to promptly acquire an
adequate number of shares of the Company to mairtain his position as the Substantial Shareholder
in any event that he is reasonably expected to cease to be the Substantial Sharehelder as a result of
issue of new shares by the Company (Note 27). As at 31 December 2014 and up to the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements, Mr. Wu, directly or indirectly, hotds 10.01% of
the Company’s shares and remains as the Substantial Shareholder.

The Company Is planaing to raise additional financial resources by carrying out various financing
activities, including but not limited to, rights issue and other means of financing activities. The
completion of these financing activities are subject to the approval from the shareholders and
relevant regulatory bodies, where applicable, and will alse depenid on Mr. Wu's commitment and
ability to subscribe for or acquire additional shares of the Company, where necessary, in order to
maintain his position as the Substantial Shareholder,

The Group will be introducing procedures to enhance the production of its existing oil wells and is
also implementing tighter cost control measures. It is expected that these measures will improve its
operating cash inflows from its continuing operations.

In the opinion of the directors, in light of the above, the Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance s operations and fulfit its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the coming twelve
months from the statement of financial position date. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare these consolidated financial statements ch a going concern basis.
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2 SUVTVIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES — CONTINUED
2.1 Basis of preparation — continued
2,1.1 Going concern - continued

Notwithstanding the above, material uncertainties exist as to whether management of the Company will
be able to obtain the necessary funding as described above as and when neaded, Whether the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern wouid depend upon the Group's ability to generate adequate cash
inflows through -continuous compliance with the bank loan reguirement, which in turn depends on the
commitment and ability of Mr. Wu to maintain as the Substantial Shareholder; successfully securing
additional financial resources from its planned financing activities; and generating adequate operating
cash infiows. Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to reduce the carrying values of the Group's assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further financfal liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current liabifities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the applicabie requirements of the
predecessor Comypanies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this financial year and the comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates, it also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumiptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

2.1.2Changes in accounting poliby and disclosures

{a) New standards, revisions and amendments to existing standards and interpretations
effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2014 and adopted by the Group

Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabifities

HKAS 34 (Amendment) Recoverahie amount disclosures for non-financial assets

Amendments to HKFRS 10, 11 and 42 Transition guidance

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment entities

HKAS 27 (2011) Amendment

HKAS 39 Amendment Novation of derivatives and continuation of
hedge accounting

HKIFRICY-Int 21 Levies

The adoption of the new standards, revisicns and amendments to existing standards and
interpretations did not have any material impact on the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES — GONTINUED

2.1 Basis of preparation - continued

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures — continued

(b} New standards, amendments to existing standards and interpretations which have
heen issued but are not effective and have not been early adopted

Amendments to HKAS 16 and 38

Amendments io HXAS 16 and 41

Amendment to HKAS 19
Amendment to HKAS 27
Amendments to HXFRS 10
and HKAS 28
Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS ¢

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRSs
Amendments to HKFRSs
Amendments to HKFRSs

Clarification of acceptance methods of
depreciation and amortisation
Agriculture bearer, plants
Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions
Equity method in separate financial statements
Sale ar contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joinit venture
Accounting for acquisitions of interests in
joint operations
Financial instruments
Regulatory deferred accounts
Revenue from contracts with customets
Annual improvements 2010-2012 cycle
Annual impravements 2011-2013 cycle
Annual improvements 2012-2014 cycle

Effective for

annual periods

heginning
on or after

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1luly 2014
1 January 2016
1 January 2016

1 Jaruary 2016

1 lanuary 2018
1 January 2016
1 January 2017
1 July 2014
1 luly 2014
1 January 2016

The Group is assessing the impact of these amendments, standards and interpretations and will

apply them once they are effective.

In addition, the reguirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation as from the Group's first financial year commencing on or
after 3 March 2014 in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the process of
making an assessment of expected impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the
consolidated financial statements in the pericd of initial application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Crdinance (Cap. 622). So far it has conciuded that the impact is unlikely to be significant
and only the praesentation and the disclosure of infermation in the consolidated financial staternents

will be affected.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLIGIES - CONTINUED
2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Group has conirol. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the ertity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsclidated
from the date that conirol ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to accourt for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values cf the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingeni
consideration arrangement. identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controfling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
idertifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incutred.

I the business combination is achieved in stages, the acguisition date carrying value of the acquirer's
nreviously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised In consolidated profit or foss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset
of liability is recognised in accordance with HKAS 3% either in consolidated profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair vaiue of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in
the consolidated orofit or oss. Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Greup’s accounting policies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES — CONTINUED

2.2

2.3

2.4

Subsidiaries — continued
2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impainment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

fmpairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments it the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceads the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwil.

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangersents
are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contraciual rights and obligations
each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint
operations.

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint contrel of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Those parties are called joint
operators.

A joint operator recognises in relation to its interast in a joint aperation:

. its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

. its liahilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;

. its revenue from the sale of its share of the output of the joint operation;

»  jts share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint cperation; and
. its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurved jointly.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s bisiness, the operations and cash flows of whict: can
ha clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major line of business or
geographic area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
husiness or geographical area of operaticns, o is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is presented in the consolidated profit or loss,
which comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation and the post-tax gain or loss
recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES - GONTINGED
2.5 Segment reporting

2.6

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been klentified as the Chief Executive Officer that makes
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(0)

{c)

Functional and presentation currency

kems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
Company’s functional currency is United States dollars ("US$") and since the Company’s shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Board of Directors considered that it is more appropriate to
adopt HK$ as the Group's and the Company’s presentation currency in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

Transactions and halances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and lossas resuliing from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
excharge rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forsign currencles are presenied in the
consglidated profit or loss within “other {lossesy/gains, net”.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as eguities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group's entitias (none of which has the currency of a hypesy-
inflaticnary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

i assets and fiabilities for each statement of financial position presenied are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that staternent of firancial position;

{in  income and expenses for each profit or loss are transiated at average exchange rates {(unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, i which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

{ilh  all resulting currency transiation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES — CONTINUED

2.6

2.7

2.8

Foreign currency translation - continued
{c} Group companies - continued

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are freated as assets and
liahifities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Exploration and evaluation asseis

0Ol and gas exploration and evaluation expenditures are acceunted for using the successfui efforts method of
accounting. Cosis are accumulated on a fieid-by-field basis. Geological and geophysical costs are expensed as
incurred. Costs directly associated with an exploration well, and exploration and property leasehold acquisition
costs, are capitalised within exploration and evaluation asssts until the determination of reserves is evaluated. If
it is determined that commercial discovery has not been achieved, these costs are charged to expense.

Once commercial reserves are found, exploration and evaluaticn assets are tested for impairment and
transferred to construction in progress under property, plant and equipment. No depreciation and depletion is
charged during the exploration and evaluation phase.

Exploration and evaluation assets are tested for impairment when reclassified to construction ir: progress, or
whenever facts and circumstances indicate impairment. An impairment loss s recognised for the amount by
which the exploration and evaluation assets’ carrying amount exceeds their recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the exploration and evaluation assets’ fair value less costs of disposal and
their value in use.

0il and gas properiies

£xpenditure on the construction, installation or completion of infrastructure facilities such as platforms,
pipelines and the drilling of commercially proven development wells, is capitalised within construction in
progress under property, plant and equipment. When development is completed on a specific field, it is
transferred to oil and gas properties. No depreciation and depletion is charged during the development phase.

0il and gas production properties are aggregated exploration and evaluation assets and development
expenditures associated with the production of praoved reserves.

0il and gas properties are depreciated and depletion using the unit-of-production methed. Unit-of-production
rates are based on proved developed reserves, which are oil, gas and other mineral reserves estimated to be
recovered from existing facilities using current operating methods. Oil and gas volumes are considered to be
part of production once they have been measured through meters at custody transfer or sales transaction
points at the outiet valve on the field storage tank.

Proven oil and gas properties are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying ameunt may not be reccverable. An impairment loss [s recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identiffable cash flows.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PGLICIES ~ CONTINUED
2.9 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and gas properties (Note 2.8), is stated at historical cost less
depreciation, depletion and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow te the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Except for oil and gas properties {(Note 2.8) and construction ir: progress, depreciation is caiculated using the
straight-fine method to alfocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives ranging from
3 to 5 years. '

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Construction in progress includes property, plant and eguipment for production or for its own use purposes,
Construction in process in respect of exploratory wells is ciassified to oil and gas properties when production of
oil starts. Construction in progress in respect of other assets is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when construction is completed and the asset is ready for intended use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within "other (losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated profit or loss.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation, depletion or amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
o changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment; assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment &t each reporting date.
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SUVIVIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED
2.11 Financial assets
2111 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: held-for-trading investments and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets ware acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a} Held-for-trading investients

Held-for-trading investments are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short tesm. Derivatives are also
cateporised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Such derivatives are classified
as current assets if expected 1o be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.

{b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for the amounts that
are settled or expected 1o be settled more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
These are classified as nor-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables comprise “trade and
other receivables” and "cash and cash equivalents” in the consolidated statement of financial
position: (Notes 2,15 and 2.16). ‘

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for ali financial assets nct carried at fair value through profit or loss. Held-for-trading
investmerts are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash fiows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Held-for-trading investments are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “held-for-trading investments” category are
presented in the consclidated profit or loss within “fair value gains/(losses) on financial instruments” in
the period in which they arise.

2.12 Offsetting financial instrumentis

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right o offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and seitie the liability simuttanecusly. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future event and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insclvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty,
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED
2.13 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporiing period whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of tha asset (a "loss event" and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtor or a group of debtors is expariencing significant

financial difficutty, default or delinquency in interest or orincipal payments, the probability that they will enter

bankruptey or other financial reorganisation, and where ohservable data indicate that there is a measurable

decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
- with defauls.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present vaiue of estimated future cash flows {exciuding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amourst of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss. If a loan has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis of
an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent pericd, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease carn be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment lass is recognised in the consolidated profit
or foss.

2.14 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at falr value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
stibsequantly re-measured at their fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and f so, the nature of the item being hedged.

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments not qualified for hedge accounting are recognised
immadiately in the consolidated profit or loss,

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise seld or services performead in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (cr in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longern), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest methad, less allowance for impairment.




58 EPI (Holdings) Limited « Anual Repert 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 Decembar 2014

2 SUMWMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES ~ CONTINUED
2.16 Gash and cash equivalents

in the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalenis includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts. I the consolidated and entity statement of financia? position, bank cverdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental cosis directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current iiabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (of in the normal operating cycle of the business if fonger). If not, they are presented as non-current
lizbilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effactive interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Rorrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
catried at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consoiidated profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the faclity will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liguidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabifities unfess the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liahility for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.




Annual Report 2014 « EPI {Holdings) Limited

oy

o]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES - CONTINUED
2.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Al} other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.21 Compound financial instruments

Compotind financial instruments issued by the Group comprise convertible notes that can be converted to
share capital at the option of the holder, and the number of shares to be issted does not vary with changes in
their fair value.

The derivative component of the convertible notes is recognised initially at fair value. The liability com‘ponent is
recoghised initially at the difference between the fair value of the convertible notes as a whole and the fair
value of the derivative component. Any directly atiributable transaction costs are allocated to the derivative
financiat liability and the liability components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The derivative are subsequently measured at fair value and
any gains or losses derived from its changes are racognised in the consolidated profit or loss,

The liability component of a convertible instrument is classified as current unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.22 Current and deferred income fax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated profit or
ioss, except to the extent that it refates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

{a) Current income tax

The cursent income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the date of the staterment of financial position in the countries where the Group operates and generates
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES — GONTINUED

2.22 Gurrent and deferred income tax - continued

(b)

{c)

Deferred income tax
inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the fiability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax hases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statemenis.
However, deferred tax liabifities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the date of the statement of financial position and are
expected to apply when the selated deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilisies are provided on faxable temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries only to the extent that it is probable the termporary difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxabie profit available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabifities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax fiabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxabie
entitias where there is an intention o settie the balances on a net hasis.
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2.23 Employee benefits

The Group maintains a number of defined contribution plans in the countries in which it operates, the assets of
the retirement benefit are generally held in separate trustees-administered funds. The retirement plans are
generally funded by payments from employees and by the Group.

(a) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive cbligations to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and pricr periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately adminisiered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or vofuntary basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as empleyee banefit expense when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction

in the future payments is available.

{b) Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on & formuia that
takes into considaration the profit attributable to the owners of the Company after certain adjustrments.
The Group recognisas a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a construciive obligation.

{c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual feave as a resuit of services rendered by employees up to the
end of reporting period.

Employee entitliements to sick leave and matermity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLIGIES - CONTINUED
2.24 Share-based payments

The Group cperates an equity-settled, share-based compensation scheme, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
emplovee services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. Share options
isstied to non-employees are for exchange for goods or services and are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, unless the fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case the goods or
services received are measlired by reference to the fair vaiue of the share options granted, The fair value of the
services is recognised as expenses while the fair value of the goods is recognised as assets. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

— including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity's share price),;

—  excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified fime period); and

— including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the pericd over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In acdition, in some circumstances employaes may pravide services in advance of the grant date and therefore
the grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting petiod, the Group revises its estimates of the number of opticns that are expected
to vest based on the non-marketing performance and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, In the consolidated profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributahle transactior: costs are credited to share capital {nominal value} and share premium.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will continue to be held in share options reserve,

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.
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2.25 Provisions

The Greup is required to make payments for restoration and rehabilitation of the land at the end of the
productive lie of oil and gas fields. Provisions for restoration are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisicns are not recognised for
future operating losses,

where there are a humber of similar obligations, the tikelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision Is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be smalll.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vaiue of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
axpanse,

Restoration cost is recorded in the period in which the obligation is identified and is capitalised to the costs of
oil and gas properties. This cost is charged to consolidated profit or loss through depreciation of the assets,
which are depreciated using the unit-of-production method based on the actual production volume over the
expected reserves of the developed wells.

2.26 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts
receivable for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes. The Group recognises
revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
henefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below. The Group bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into consideration the type
of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

5ales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset exchuding financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on
a time hasis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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2.27 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of cwnership are retained by the lessor are
ciassified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated profit or [oss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.28 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant wifl be received and the Group will comply with all atiached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the consolidated profit or loss over the
period necessary (0 match them with the costs that they are intended tc compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in non-current lishilities as deferred
government grants and are credited to the consolidated profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets. :

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a lisbility in the Group’s and the
Company's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or direciors, where appropriate.

FINANGIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk {including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow and fair vaiue interest rate risk and price risk}, credit risk and lguidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of fnancial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

{a) Marketrisk
(it  Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to HK$ and the Argentina peso ("ARS"). The Group considers there is no significant
exposure o foreign exchange fluctuations so fong as the Hong Kong-United States doflar exchange
rate remains pegged.

At 31 Dacember 2014 and 2013, the Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk with
respect to ARS as most of the financial assets and liabilities held by the Group's overseas
subsidiaries and their future commercial transactions are denominated in tha respective local
currency of such subsidiaries. The Group currently does not have a formal foreign currency hedging
nolicy. However, the managemant monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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FINANGIAL RiSK MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED

3.1 Financial risk factors — continued

(a)

Market risk — continued

{ii)

@iif)

Price risk

The Group is engaged in a wide range of petroleum-related activities. Prices of crude oil and
petroleum products are affected by a wide range of global and domestic factors which are beyond
the control of the Group. The fluctuations in such prices may have favourable or unfavourable
impacts to the Group. The Group did nct enter into any material hedging against such price risk
during the year.

The Group is aisc exposed to equity securities price risk because of the Group’s issuance of
warrants and derivative component of convertible notes. If the input of the Company's share price
to the valuation models of the warrants and derivative component of the converiibles notes had
been higher/iower while all other variables held constart, the loss for the year ended 31 December
2014 and 2013 would increase/decrease.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-ierm borrowings. Borrowings cbtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at
variable rates, Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and wili consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need
alise.

The Company's amounts due from subsidiaries were interest free, and expose the Company to fair
value interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2014, if interest rates on US$-denominated bank borrowings had been 50 basis
poinis (2013: 50 hasis pointsy higher/lower with all other variables held constant, post-tax loss for
the year would have been HK$951,000 (2013: HK$1,125,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.
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FINANGIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED
3.1 Financial risk factors — continued

(b}

()

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which may cause a
financial Joss o the Group due to failuse to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amourt of the respective recognised financial assets as stated In the consolidated statement
of financial position. :

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies and state-owned banks with good reputatios.

The Group's cencentration of credit risk for trade receivables by geographical locations is mainly in
Argentina, which accounted for 100% (2013: 100%%) of the iotal trade receivables as at 31 December 2014,
For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014, the entire Group’s revenue was derived from one
customer. The Group had concentration of credit risk as 100% {2013: 100%; of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group's only customer as at 31 December 2014. The Group’s only customer is a state
owned enterprise oil company based in Argentina and with good creditability. In this regard, the
management considers that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk
Save as disciosed in Note 2.1.1, the Group’s liquidity risk management involves maintaining sufficient cash

and cash equivalents and internally generated funds and funds arose from financing activities, such as
issue of convertible notes ar equity instriiments, if necessary.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s non-derivative financial lizhilities and net-settled
derivative financiat liabilittes into relevant maturity greupings based on the remaining period at the date of
statement of financial position o the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed it the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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3.1 Financial risk factors — continued

(c) Liguidity risk - continued

Aio. imdiscoured " - Carying
~Cashflows - Amoint
e o

ss e Tt
= o oty iy
)

Group
At 3% December 2014
Nen-derivative financial iabilities
Trade payables

Offer payelles

Borrowings

- —varichle-rate

Convertible notes

e

At 3 December 2013
Nor-derivativa financial liabilities
Trade payables NA 3050 - - - 3050 3050
Other payables Wit m - - - 230 23
Borrowings
—variablerate 435% - - A7 4215 0850 23000
— fixedi-rate % - 2049 - - 2049 2000
Copwertible notes Fu% - - - 110,000 1060 34054

531 249 4% ETARY 472648 364,428

Note:  As the conversion component in convertible notes and warrants issued {if exercised; would be settied by shares of the Company.,
they are not inciudad in the maturity table above. A payable of HK$104,140,000{2013: HK$104,140,000) arlsen from the financial
guarantee provided by the Company to third parties in respect of a bank foan (Note 27 and 33), is interest free and payable In the
event that the Company defaults on the repayment of the bank borrowings.
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3.1 Financial risk factors — continued

{c} Liguidity risk — continued

Company

At 31 December 2014

Non-derivative financial liahilities

(ther payablas

Amountdue to subsidianes

Borowings S : b

—vaable e o s

Conerble oles S 600 oeam

CUTGH0ST. 243985 AN0T09 . 3730

At 31 December 2013

Non-derivative financial liahilitias

Ciher payables HiA b 1Y) - - - 20 230

Amount due to subsiclaries NiA 0315 - - - 90,814 %0814

Borsewings )

~variahledate 435% . - - 86,476 M2 X867 27300

— e rate A% - 2049 - - 2049 2000

Convartinle notes 4% - - - 0000 110,000 84,054
931% 2049 66476 32151 513812 452190

Note:  As the conversion cornponent in convertible notes and warrants issued (if exercised) would be settfed by shares of the Company,
they are not included i the maturity table above. A payable of HK$104,140,00G {2013: HK$104,140,000) arisen from the financial
guarantee provided by the Company to third parties in respect of a hank lcan (Note 27 and 33), is interest free and payable in the
evant that the Company defaults on the repayraent of the bank borrowings. '
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3.2

3.3

Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ahility to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital struciure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group does not have a target gearing ratio, but has a poficy of maintaining a flexible financing structure so
as to be able to take advantage of new investment cpportunities that may arise.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation methed. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

—  Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markeis for identical assets or liabilities (level 1),

—  [nputs other than guoted prices included within level 1 that are observabie for the asset or fiability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly {that is, derived from prices) (fevel 2).

—  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservahle Inputs)
{level 3),

The following table presents the Group's financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair vélue an
recurring basis at 31 December 2014.

T level1 o level2  Level3
0 HKS§'000

HK$'000 © HK$000

Assets
Held-for-trading investments ; 3
— Trading securities - e

Total assets

Liabilities

Derivatives financial instruments
~— Cenvertible note — conversion component
— Warrants

Total liabilities
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FINANGIAL RISK MANAGEMENT — CONTINUED

3.3 Fair value estimation — coniinued

The following table presents the Group's financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on
recurring basis at 31 December 2013.

Assels
Held-for-trading investmenis
— Trading securities 98 - - 98
Total assets 98 - - 98
Liahilities
Derivatives financial instruments
— Convertible note — conversicn comaonent - - 38,152 38,152
— Warrants - - 20,751 26,751
Total liabilities - - 58,903 58,903

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
date of the statement of financial position. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or reglilatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These

instruments are included in level 1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily Hong Kong Stock

Exchange equity investments classified as trading securities.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair vaiue of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for exampte, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation technigues. These valuation technigues maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Financial instruments in level 3

Specific vatuation technigues used to value financial instruments include the use of appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm'’s length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow
analysis; and option pricing models.
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3.3 Fair value estimation ~ confinued

(c}

Financial instruments in level 3 — continued

The foflowing table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year ended 31 December 2014

. Warants - Total
000 - HK$'000 -

1 January 2014
Gain recognised in profit and loss

Amortisation of deferred loss on conversion I
017,783

component and warrants 78
Redemption of convertible notes . (2,895)
31 December 2014

sem

Fotal gain for the year included in
profit or loss for liabilities held at
the end of the year

Changes in unreafised gains
for the year included in profit or loss at
the end of the year
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3.3 Fair value estimation — continued

(c)

Finahcial instruments in level 3 — continued

The following table presents the changes in ievel 3 instruments for the year ended 31 December 2013

_.conversion’
. componerit

). (ote 28 ol
- HKE000 HK$'000
1 January 2013 4,934 - - 4,934
At issue date - 59,899 14,752 74,651
Gain racognised in profit and loss - (25,229) (2,689 {27,918}
Amortisation of deferred loss on
conversion component and warrants - 3,482 8,688 12,170
Conversion {4,934 - - {4,934)
31 December 2013 - 38,152 26,751 58,903

Total loss for the year included in
profit or loss for liabilities heid at
the end of the year - {12,464} {5,999 (12,463)

Changes it unrealised gains or {losses)
for the year included in profit or foss at
the end of the year - 21,746 (5,999 15,747

The higher the Company’s share price and the expected volatility used in determining the fair value of the
level 3 instruments, the higher the fair valle of these instruments.

The lower the interest-free rate used in determining the fair value of the level 3 instruments, the lower the
fair value of these instruments.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not basad on observable market data, the instrument is included
inievel 3. .
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reascnable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resutting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjusiment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Going concern consideration

In order to fund the existing operations of the Group and to continue as a going concarm, management is
required to determine key assumptions adopted in working capital forecast projections and make judgement

ahoui future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently uncertain. These assumptions and

uncertainties are set out in Note 2.1.1.

Impairment of other receivables

The Group’s managerment determines the provision for impairment of other receivables based on an
assessmeni of the recoverability of the receivables. The assessment is based on the credit history of its
customers and other debtors and the current market condition and requires the use of judgments and
astimates. Management reassesses the provision at each of the date of statement of financial position.

Estimation of petroleum reserves

Estimates of petroleum reserves are key elerents in the Group's investment decision-making process. They are
also an important element ir: testing for impairment. Changes in proved petroleum reserves, particularly proved
developed reserves, will affect unit-of-production depreciation and depletion recorded in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for property, plant and equipment related to oil and gas production activities.
A reduction in proved developed reserves will increase depreciation and depletion charges. Proved reserve
estimates are subject to revision, either upward or downward, based on new information, such as from
develepment driliing and production activities or from changes in econemic factors, inciuding product prices,
contract terms or development plans.

Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets and oil and gas properties under property,
plant and equipment

The carrying amounts of the exploration and evaluation assets and oil and gas properties under property, plant
and equipment are assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amounts
of themn may exceed their recoverable amounts, The Group's determination as to whether they are impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the assets. The Group relied on experts to assess the
geological prospects for the discovery of ol in the oil field and estimated the value of cil to be produced in the
future at a suitable discount rate in order to caiculate the present value. For drilling costs and other exploration
and evaluation assets, the Group determined whether the related well costs are expensed If it is determined
that such economic viahility is not attained after performing further feasibifity studies.

Judgement is required by the directors to determine key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow projections and therefore the results of the
impairment reviews, Details of the key assumptions adopted and the corresponding impact, refer to Note 16.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS - CONTINUED
(e} The fair value of the warrant

()

(9)

(h)

The fair value of the warrant issued requires judgment in determining the expected volatility of the share price,
the dividends expected on the shares, the risk-free interest rate during the life of the warrant. Details of the
assumptions used in determining the fair value of the warrant have been disclosed in Note 29.

Fair value of convertible notes and the embedded conversion options

The fair value of convertibie notes and the embedded conwersion options are determined using vatuation
techniques including reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Details of
the assumptions used in determining the fair value of the convertible notes and the embedded conversion
options have been disclosed in Note 28.

Recognition of share-based payments

The Group operates & number of equity-settied, share-based compensaticn plans, under which the eguity
receives services from employees and consuitants as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the
Group. The directors of the Company have used the Bincemial Mode! to delermine the total value of the options
granted, which is based on fair value and various attributes of the underlying shares of the Company. Significant
estimates and assumpticns are required to be made in determining the parameters for applying the Binomial
Model, including estimates and assumptions regarding the risk-free rate of return, expected dividend yield and
volatility of the underlying shares and the expecied life of the share options. In addition, the Group is required to
estimate the expected percentage of grantees that will remain in employment or terms with the Group at the
end of the vesting pericd. The Group only recognises an expense for those share options expected to vest over
the vesting period during which the grantees become unconditionally entitied to these share-based awards.
Changes in these estimates and assumptions could have a material effect on the determination of the fair value
of the share options and the amount of such share-based awards expected to become vested, wiich may 0
turn significantly impact the determination of the share-based payments.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group Is subject ¢ income taxes in various jurisdictions. Judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes in these jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations during the ordinary course of
business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax provisions i the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to tax losses are recognised when management considers it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences or tax fosses can be utitised.
When the expectation is different from the original estimate, such differences will impact the recognition of
daferred income tax assets and taxation charges in the period in which such estimate is changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 3 December 2014

DISCONTINUED GPERATION

On 5 December 2014, the board of directors of the Company passed a resolution o discontinue the cperation in EPI
Metals Limited, a subsidiary of the Company collectively holds 100% equity interest. EPI Metals Limited is principally
engaged in the trading of matals. The discontinued operation decision is based on Company's strategy of focusing on
the exploration and producticn of oil and gas industry.

The discontinued cperation represents the whole metal transactions segment. The financial informaticn below serves
the purpose of hoth discontinued oparation and segment disclosure in Note 4.

o
HK$'000 -

Loss for the year from a discontinued operation

Segment results excluding impairment 92
Impairmesit loss (13,966)
toss for the year from a discontinued operation (14,058)

Cashflows from a discontinued operation

Net cash flows used in operating activities (&

Net cash outflows (2

As at 31 December 2014, directors considered that the receivable arising from metal contract amounting to
HK$200,810,000 was impaired and fully provided for. :

Movermnents in the Group's allowance for impairment of other receivables and repayments are as follows:

At 1 fanuary
Recognition of impairment loss

At 31 December
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&

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the petroleum exploration and production. Turmnover and revenue for the year
comprise the following:

o201
- HK$'000

Sales of petroleum : 85689 89,853

The chief executive officer of the Company {the "Chief Executive Officer”) is the Group's chief operating decision-
maker. Management has determined the operating segments based cn the information reviewed hy the Chief
Executive Officer for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing performance.

The Chief Executive Officer having considerad the business of the Group from both a geographic and product
perspective and has determined with management that the Group operated only in one geography segment, being
Argentina and has & single product in activity segment by petroleum exploration and production.

The Group's reportable segments are (1) Petroleum exploration and production {Continuing operaticn) and (2) Metal
transactions (Discontinued operation), Segment information of metal transaction Is set cut in Note 5,

The Chief Fxecutive Officer assesses the performance of the operating segmenis based on a measure of segment
results. This measurement basis excludes the effects of non-recurring expenses from the operating segments such
as legal expenses and impairments when the impairment is the result of an isclated, non-recurring event. The
measure also exciudes the effects of equity-settled share-based payments and unrealised gains/losses on financial
instruments. Interest income and expenses are not allocated to segment, as this type of activity is driven by the
central treasury function, which manages the cash position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION — CONTINUED
Continuing operation:

Petroleum exploration and production

For the vear ended 31 December 2614

L2013
: 000
: - Reéstated)
Segment revenus (external sales) 89,853
Result i
Segment results excluding impairment 7271 4,408
impairment losses L (91,049). (493,308)
Segment loss (73.778) - (488,900)
Unallocated other gains and losses et : 13,360
Unallocated corporate expenses (145,816}
Finance costs (43,757}
Loss for the year from continuing operation {665,113}
o 2013
- HK$'000-
Assets
Petroleum exploration and production 422,002
Metal transactions 200,838
Total segment assets 622,840
Unallocated 53,503
Consolidated assets 674,343
Liabilities
Petroleurn exploration and production - 10,904
Metal transactions 6
Total segment liabilities 10,910
Unallocated 447 247
Consolidated liabilities 458,157
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6  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - CONTINUED

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and aliocating resources between segments:

—  all assets are allocated to reporiable segments other than other tax recoverables, heid-for-trading investments
and assets used jointly by reportable segments.

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segmert other than convertible notes, borrowings, derivative financial
liabifities and liabilities for which reportable segment are jointly liable.

Amounts included in the meastire of segment profit of foss or
segment assets:

Capitat expenditure

— Petroleum exploration and production 26,473
— Unallocated 1,247
27,750
Depreciation and depletion
— Petroleum exploration and production 27,307
— Unallccated 136
27,443
Impairment loss recognised in respect of exploration and evaluation
assets 442197
Impairment loss recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment 51,111
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in respect of tax recoverable (660}
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REVENUE AMD SEGMENT INFORMATION - CONTINUED

The Group's revenue from external customers based on the location of customers and information about its non-
current assets, excluding other tax recoverables, by geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

80853 . - 252,617, 358,480

Argentina :
01,027 ¢ 1,249

Others

89853 253,644 359,729

For the year ended 31 December 2014, external revenue of approximately HK$85,689,00C (2013: HK$89,853,000) is
generated from one major customer which accounts for 100% of the Group's external revenue, The revenue is
attributable to petroleum exploration and preduction segment.

OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

Continuing operation:

Other interest income
Bark interest income

Total interest income

Government grants {Note)
Exchange (losses)/gains, net

1055 on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Others

Note!

The amouri represented government subsidy obtained for the Group's petroteur exploration and production in Asgendina. No subsidy was granged by
the Argentina government during the year 2014 as Chafiares, the Concession owner of the field, did not meet the requirement for subsidy entitiement.
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8  WAGES, SALARIES AND OTHER RENEFITS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

Continuing operation:

Wages, salaries and other benefits
Pension costs — defined contribution plans (Note (a))
Share-based payments (Note 25)

Notes;

(a)

o)

Pension costs — defined contribution plans

with effect from 1 Decamber 2000, a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme {the "MPF Scheme®) has been set up for employees in Hong Kong in
accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. Commencing on 1 December 2000, the existing employees in Hong Kong
may elect to join the MPE Scherme, and all new employees in Hong Kong are reguired to join the MPF Scheme. Under the rufes of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees in Hong Kong are each reguired to contribute 5% of thelr gross earnings. Starting from 1 June 2014,
the celling changed from HK$1,250 to HK$1,500 per menth to the MPF Scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
scheme Is to make the required contrbutions under the schame. Mo forfelted contribution s available to reduce the contribution payabie in the
future years. The MPF contributions gharged to the profit or loss represent the contributions pald or payable 10 the funds by the Group.

The Group also participates in the employees’ pensich schemes of the respective municipal gevernments in the countries where the Group
operates, The Group makes monthly contributions calculated as a percentage of the monthiy basic salary and the relevant municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retiress of the Group-

The Group has no other cbligaticns for the payrent of pensicn and other post-retirement benefits of employees other than the above
contribtitions.

Directors’ and chief execttive officer emoluments

The remuneratior: paid or payable to each of the directors and the Chief Executive Officer for the year ended 31 December 2014 Is set out
below:

‘Other emoluments - g

SRR Ratirement
henefits -
. scheme -

o Total
i HK$'000

Non-executive Chairman
Ho King Fung, Eric

Executive directors
Tse Kwok Fai, Sammy
Chan Chi Hung, Anthony

Independent non-executive directors
Qian Zhi Hui
Zhu Tiansheng
Tech Chun Ming (Note ()

Total emaoluments
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 Decembar 2014

WAGES, SALARIES AND OTHER BENEFITS (INGLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) - CONTINUED

Notes — continued:

(1)

Directors' and chief executive officar emoluments - continued

The remuneraticn paid or payable to each of the directors and the Chief Executive Officer for the year ended 31 Decembar 2013 is set out

below:

payments -

HKE000 T HKE 00X

- HKS000 ™

Non-executive Chairman

Ho King Fung, Eric (Note {iv) 450 - 12,378 - 12,828
Executive directors
Tse Kwok Fai, Sammy {Note (i} - 2,130 7,392 kY| 9,533
Chan Chi Hung, Anthiony (Note (i) - 276 4,449 8 £733
Allan Rigchie (Note {(vii} - 658 3,072 - 3,730
Chu Kwok Chi, Robert (Note (vii)) - 541 - 5 506
Hong Kin Choy (Note {vii} - 890 - 6 896
Independent non-executive directors
Lam Ting Lok {Note (ix) 90 - - - 20
Qian Zhi Hui 150 - - - 150
Zhu Tlansheng 150 - - - 150
Cheung Yuk Ming (Note (X)) 75 - - - 75
Total emoluments @15 4515 27,291 30 32,751

Tse Kwok Fai, Sammy is lso the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in 2013 and 2014 and his emnoluments disclosed above include those

for services rendeared by him as the chief executive.

There was ho arrangement under which a director and the Chief Fxecutive Officer waived or agreed to waive remuneration during both years.
in addition, no remuneration was paid by the Group to any of the directors and the Chief Executive Officer as an inducement to join, or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Neies:

() Other benefits mainly comprise leave pay, and quarter expenses.

i) Appointed on 9 April 2013
iy~ Appointad on 16 July 2013.

(v Appointad on 4 April 2013 as Non-executive Diractor and re-designated as the Non-executive Chairman on 30 july 2013.

[\Y)] Appointed on 16 January 2014.

o) Appointed on 4 April 2013 and resigned on 29 November 2013.
(vl Resigned on 9 April 2013. Compensation for loss of his office as 2 director of the Company amounting to HKX$8,000,000 was recognised

during the year ended 31 December 2014,
(i)  Resigned on 3 June 2013.

i  Appointad on 4 Apil 2013 and resigned on 10 January 2014,

1] Retired on 3 July 2013,
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WAGES, SALARIES AND OTHER BENEFITS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) — CONTINUED

Notes — continued:
{© Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoiuments were the highest in the Group for the year includs four (2013: foury directors whose emoiuments are
reflacted in the analysis presented above. The emoiuments payable to the remaining one {2013: one) individual during the vear are s follows:

o201

_ : - HRE000 ¢
Sataries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,610
Pension costs — defined coniribution plans g
Share-based payments 2474
4093

the ernoluments feit within the following bands:
wiNumber of individuals o
L2014 T 2013

Emolument bands
HK$2,000,001-HK$3,000,000
HK$4,000,001-HKS$5,000,000

PROVISION OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Continuing operation;

Impairment foss of exploration and evaluaticn asseis (Note 16) 442,197

Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment (Note 17) 51,111

Reversal of impairment loss of other tax recoverables (Note 19) {660}
492,648

Provisicn for impairment loss of a discontinued operation is set out in Note 5.

FAIR YALUE GAINS/(LOSSES) ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Continuing operation:

Fair value gain/(loss) on derivative component of convertible notes (12,464)
Fair value (foss)/gains on held-for-trading investments &1
Fair value gain/ioss) on warrants {5,999

L 0ss on disposal of bond

{18,402)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

FINANGE COSTS

Continuing operation:

Interest on borrowings wholly repayable within five years:

Bank borrowings and overdrafts 14,345
Other loans 9,292
Effective interest axpense cn convertible notes (Note 28) 20,120
43757

Total interest expenses

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in these financial statements as the Group did not have
assessahle profits arising in Hong Kong for the year (20137 Nil).

Argentina income tax is calcuated at 35% (2013: 35%) of assessable profit for the year. No provision for Argentina
income tax has been made as there is no net assessable profits atising in Argentina for the year.

The tax on the Group’s loss for the year differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic tax
rates applicable to loss of the consolidated entities are as follows:

Centinuing operation;
Loss for the year {665,113)
Tax credit calculated at weighted average tax rates applicable to

loss In the respective countries 121,575
Income not subject to tax 4,180
Expenses not deductibie for tax purpose (110,077
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised {15,707)
Others 29
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i3

INCOME TAX EXPENSE — CONTINUED

Discontinued operation:

Loss for the vear {14,058)
Tax credit calculated at weighted average tax rates applicable to loss 2,319
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose {2,319)

At 31 December 2014, the Group had unused tax losses of HK$199,670,000 (2613: HK$257,889,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unused tax losses are losses of HK$68,814,000 (2013
HK$47,899,000} that will expire within 5 vears, All other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATION

T
© HK$'00D
Loss for the vear from continuing operation has beer: arrived after charging
the following itemns:
Auditor's remuneration 2,500
Minimum lease payments under operating leases in respect of office
properties and buildings 2,524
Share-hased payments granted to consultants (Note 25) 16,730
Professiona! fees 14,401
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

14 LOSSES PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic losses per share is calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
— Centinuing cperation
— Discontinued operation

180,233). (665,113)
{200,910). (14,058)

o0

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue - : 4,642,939 3,544,464

(b) Diluted

Dilkited losses per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all potential dilutive ordinary shares. The Company has three (2013: three) categories
of potential dilutive ordinary shares: warrants, convertible notes and share options (2013: warrants, convertible
noles and share options). The convartible notes are assumed to have been converted into crdinary shares, and
the net loss is adjusted to eliminate the interest expense less the tax effect. For the share options and warrants
(2013: share options and warrants), a calculation is done to determine the number of shares that could have
heen acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual market share price of the Company’s shares)
hased on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of
sharas calculated as above is compared with the number of shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options and warrangs.

These potential dilutive ordinary shares were anti-dilutive for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,

15 DIVIDEND
The board of directors does not recommend the payment of a dividend during the year 2013 Nil).
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16 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

013

- HK$'000
Cost
At 1 January and 31 December 3,778,574

Impairment
AL 1 January
Charged to consolidatad profit or loss (Note 9)

2,130,106
442 197

At 31 December 3,572,303

Net book amount
A1 January

648,468

Al 31 December 206,271

Note:

The balance relates o exploration and evaluation assets in fespect cf ol exploration rights through the participating interest in the Pussto Pozo
cercado Concession and Chafiares Herrados Concession {together, the “Concessions”) in the Cuyana Basin, Mendoza Province, Argentina, covering a
total surface area of approximately 162.4 and 40 square kilometers respectively.

The Puesto Pozo Cercado Concession and Chafiares Herrados Concession were awarded to Chariares Herrados Empresa de Trabajos Petroleros S.A,
{"Chafiares™, the concesslonaire. The terms of these oil exploration and production concessions are 25 years commencing from 26 june 1992 and 24
September 1992, respectively, with the possibility of obtaining a 10-year extension under certain conditions,

In 2014, Chafiares obtained an extension of 10 years from the date of expiry of the original term of the Concessions under a Decree dated 30 June 2011
issued by the Executive of the Province of Mendoza.

Since 2012 chwards, the Argentina goverrment has been taking more drastic measures to ensure growth and keeping the currency stable, such as
import restrictions and severe capital controls. These policies are exacerbating economic stagnation and leading to pofitical unrest. As a result, the
directors of the Company decidad to delay the Group’s overati drilling plan to later vears untit the investment clirate it Argentina is improved,

In 2013, the economic and pofitical environment in Argenting remainad uncertain. With reference to certaln future oil price forecast avaliable to the
date of approval of the consolidated financlal staterents for the year ended 31 December 2013, the direcicrs expected that there would be a high
probability of detarioration in the growth of future oil price cutiook. Taking into account of potential acqisition apportunity identified by the Group, the
directors decidad to further delay the Group's overall drilling plan to fater years. As a resuit, the directors conductad a review of the Group's petroleum
exploration and production business in Argentina and determined that the Group's exploration and evaluation assets, and ol and gas propetties under
property, plant and equipment should be further impaired. Accordingly, impairment losses of HK$442,197,000 and HK$5%,111,000 were recognised In
respect of the Group's exploration and evaluation assets and ofl and gas properties under propesty, plant and equipment, raspectively during the year
ended 31 December 2013,

since the last quarter of 2614, the globa! oil price has been decreasing drastically. With reference to the Jatest avallable future off price forecast, the
directors expect that the deterloration in growth of cil price cutlock would continue in the next few years. should the drifing plan be taken place in
accordance with schedule made in last year, it would not be beneficiat to the Group. Accordingly, the directors decided to further delay the Group's
overall driiing plan. As a resul:, the directers conducted a review of the Group's petroleum exploration and production business in Argentina and
determined that the Group's exploration and evaluation assets, and oft and gas properties under property, plant and equipment shouid be further
impaired.
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EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS ~ GONTINUED

Note: —continuad

The above changes in future of price cutlook and the Group's deferral in the Argentina investment plan would have a significant Impact to the timing
and amount of expected future cash fiows from the cperation as well as the recoverable amount of the exploration and evaluation assets, and off and
gas properties under property, plant and equipment of the Group. Conseguently, knpairment fosses of HK$91,049,000 was recognised in respect of the
Group's exploration and evaluation assets during the year ended 31 December 2014

The recoverable amounts of the exploration and evaluation assets and ofl and gas properties under property, plant and equipment were determined
from value In use calculations based on a cash flow projection derived from estimated oil reserve at the Concesslons Up to the explry of the concession
right in 2027 at a discount rate of 18.06% {2013; 17.7%) for exploration: and evaluation assets and 16.2% (2013: 17.0%} for o and gas properties under
property, plant and equipment respectively. :

The relevant pre-tax discount rates used in these value in use calculation for exploration ard evaluation assets and ofl and gas propesties under
property, plant and equipment are 25.6% (2013: 27.2%) and 21.4% (2013: 26.2%) respectively.

The key assurmptions for the value in use calculation are those regarding the discount rates, production decline rates and expected changes in future
off prices. The expected future ail prices for our Argentina Operation for the next five years range from US566.90 to US$106.30 (2013: from US$89.87 t0

US$100.45) per barrel.

should the future ol price be further decreased by 3% (2013: 5%), the carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets would have recognised
further impairment of HK$47,221,000 {2013 HK$206,271,000). In respect of off and gas propertes undsr property, plant and equipment, If the expected
oil price be further decreased by 3% (2013: 5%}, the Group would have recognised further impairment of HK$4,879,000 (2013 HK$10,442,000).

should the discount rate used in the value in use calculations for exploration and evaluation assets and off and gas properties under property, plant and
equipment had been one percentage point higher, additional impairment of HK$27,589,00G {2013: HK$79,856,000) and HK$4,413,000 {2013:

HK$8,255,000) woldd have been recognised respectively.
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND ROUIPMENT

At 1 January 2013

Cost 458,537 2,453 460,990 997
Accumulated depreciation (#8,034) (1,571} (89,605) {761
Accumullated impairment losses (166,929) - {166,929)

Net book amount ) 203,574 882 204,456 236

¥ear ended 31 December 2013

Opening het hook amount 203,574 882 204,456 236
Additions ’ 26,324 1,394 27,726 1,247
Disposals - (164) (164) (150)
Depreciation and depletion (27,08%) (362) (27,443 (102)
Impairment foss (Notes ¢ and 16) 6.1 - (51,111) -
Closing net book amount 151,706 1,752 153,458 1,231

At 31 Decemnber 2013

Cost 434,861 3An 488,272 2048
Accumulated depreciation {115,115) (1,659 (116,774) (817}
Accumulated impairment fosses (218.040) - (218,040) -

Met book amount 151,706 1,752 153,458 1,231

Year ended 31 December 2014
Opening net book amaunt
Additions

Disposal _ _ \
Depreciation and depletion (17,6300 3 (18 043)

Closing net bogk amount

At 31 December 2014 L
Cost CMenA% | 3473 490,609
Accumulated depreciation 1078 ,069) (134,14

Accurnulated impairment losses
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IMYESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES

Investmentis, at cost:
Unlisted shares

Amounts due from subsidiaries {Note (@) 4,770,141

Less: Provision for impairment {Note (o)) {4,054,602)
o 427.955" 715,539

Amaunts due to subsidiaries (Note (a)) : 90791 90,814

Investments in the Group undertakings are recoded at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration paid.

Notes:
{a) The amourtts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-ree, repayable on demand and mainly denominated in HKS.

[n)] Movemernts in the provision for the impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries are as follows:

At 1January 3,552,335
Recognition of impairment loss 502,267
At 31 December 4,054,602

(&) The following is a fist of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2014:

-ordinary share/
“ regis :greg capital -

EP Energy S.A. Argentina Petrofeum exploration and  ARS303,600 100%
praduction

Have Result Investnents British virgin Petroleum exploration and  US$10,000 100%
Limited islands/Argentina production

The above table fists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion of the directers, principafly affected the resuits or net assets of the
Group. To give details of ather subsidiaries wouid, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiarias had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year, or at any tire during the year.
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19

20

OTHER TAX REGOVERABLES

2013

Tolal other tax recoverables 41,295
Less: Current portion {12,753}
Non-cuftent portion 17563 28,542

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulation in Argentina, value-added tax on expenditure incurred in drilling and
purchasing property, plant and equipment relating to the petroleum exploration and production operation in
Argentina can be used to offset value-added tax arising from the future sales of petroleum. Management estimated
the recoverable amount of the valus-added tax based on future revenue which the Group expecis to be generated
from sales of petroleum, with reference to the current exploratios: and evaluation stages of the oil field and oil
production from wells, During the year ended 31 December 2014, a reversal of provision for impairment foss on
recoverable value-added tax expense of HK$17,473,000 (2013; HK$660,000) was recognised in profit and loss (Note 9),
The directors of the Company expected that an amount of HK$17,563,000 (2013: HK$28,542,000) will be recovered
from the sales of petroleum after twelve months from the date of statement of financial position and, accordingly,
classified the amount as non-current assets.

FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

“investments
HK$000.

. Total
HK$'000

As at 31 December 2014

Assets as per consolidated statement of financial position
Trade and other receivables exciuding prepayments
Held-for-trading investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Total
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20 FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY ~ CONTINUED

' -Td‘ta'[.j:

HK$'000

As at 31 December 2014
Liabilities as per consolidated staternent of financial position
Borrowings

Convertible notes

Derivative financial liabitities

Trade and other payables excluding non-financial fiabilities

Total

As at 31 December 2013
Assets as per consolidated statement of financial position

Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments 26,378 - 26,378
Held-for-trading invesiments - 93 98
Cash and cash equivalents 48,029 - 48,029

Total ' 74,407 98 74,505
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20 FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - CONTINUED

As at 31 December 2013
iiabilities as per consolidated statement of financial position

Borrowings - 275,000 275,000
Convertible notes - 84,054 84,054
Derivative financial tiabilities 58,903 c—= 58,903
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabitities - 33,187 33,187
Total 58,903 392,241 451,144

©Heldfor-
© trading

Loansand
. receivables . - investment
CHK$'000 - HK$'000.. .

As at 31 December 2014

Assets as per statement of financial position
Other receivables excluding prepayments
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Total Coaszem
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20 FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - CONTINUED

As at 31 December 2014
Liabilities as per statement of financial position
Borrowings '
Convertible notes

Derivative financial liabilities

Other payables excluding non-financial liabilities
Amount due to subsidiaries

Total

As at 31 December 2013
Assets as per statement of financial position

Other receivables excluding prepayments 596 - 594
Armounts due from subsidiaries 715,539 - 715,539
Cash and cash equivalents 21,179 - 21,179

Total 737314 - 737314
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20 FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GONTINUED

21

As at 31 December 2013
Liabilities as per statemernt of financial position

Borrowings - 275,000 275,000
Convertible notes - 84,054 84,054
Derivative financial iabilities 58903 . - 58,903
Other payables exchuding non-financiat liabilities - 6,454 6,454
Amount due to subsidiaries - 90,814 90,814
Totat 58,903 £546,322 515,225

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables {Note (a))
Prepayment to a metal supplier {Note 5)
Other receivables and other prepayrments
Loan to athird party (Note (b))

200810
21,666

227,192 i o

Notes:

{a) The Group allows on average credit period of 30 to 60 days to its rade customer. The trade receivables of HK$3,5%6,000 (2013: HK$4,716,000)
were neither past die nor impaired and aged within 30 days based on the invoice date.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potertial customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits
and credit quaty attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. Receivables that were neither past due ner impaired refate to a custemer for
whom there was no recent histary of default.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS — CONTINUED

Notes; — continued

[(»)] Loan to a third party of HK$15,600,000 which is unsecurad, interest hearing at fixed interest rate of 12% per annum, denominated in UsS,
repayable within six months from the agreement date,

© The other classes within trade and cther receivables do not contain impaired assets.

() The maximurn exposure to credit isk at the date of statement of financial position is the carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned
above. As at 31 December 2014, the Group does not hold any coflateral as secuyity.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables and prepayments are denominated in cuencies:

L eroup

oo
L UHKS'000
ARS SR oe g0d 25,722
us$ 163025
HKS Shi 02
RMB i :._"Z

e

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

HK$'000

Listed securities — held-for-trading at fair value

— Fquity securities — Hong Kong 98

Held-for-trading investments are presented within “operating activities” as part of changes in working capital in the
consolidated statement of cash flows (Note 31}

Changes in fair values of held-for-trading investments are recérded in “fair value gains/(losses) on financial
instrurments” in the consolidated profit or foss (Note 10).

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their current bid prices in an active market.
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23 GASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2014

Cash at banks and on hand

Bank baiances carry interest at market rates which range from 0.01% to 1.25% (2013: 0.01% to 1.25%}) per annum.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

o0

ARS
Uss$
HKS

Others
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24 SHARE CAPITAL

Nominal value -
of ordinary
shares -

Number:of -

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
At 1 January, 31 December 2013 and 2014 10,000,000 1,000,000

Issued and fuly paid:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

At 1 January 2013 3,130,378 313,038

Issue of new shares upen placements (Note (al} 125,000 12,500

Issue of new shares upon placements (Note () 650,000 65,000

Issue of shares upon conversion of convertible notes (Note {¢)) 124,500 12,450

Issue of shares upon exercise of share options (Note (d) 140,000 14,000
At 31 December 2013 ' 4,169,878 416,983
Isstie of new shares upon placements (Note (e) 682,480 68,248
At 31 December 2014 4,852,358 485,236
Notes:

(&

{b)

{0

(e}

n

0On 1 March 2013, the Company cempleted a placement of 125,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (the "Mareh 2013 Placing Shares”) at a
placing price of HK$0.18 par share 1o independent third parties, Accordingly, 125,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were Issued at a
premium of HK$0.08 each. The premium on issue of shares of HK$10,000,000 was credited to the share premium account. The Company aiso
issued unlisted warrans (“Warrants™, on the basis of 5 Warrants for each March 2013 Placing Share Issued. Detaiis of the Warrants are set out
in Note 29.

On 27 August 2013, the Company completed & placement of 650,000,000 ordinary shares of HKS0.10 each at & placing price of HK$0.19 per
share to indepandent third parties. Accordingly, 650,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were issued at a premium of HKSC.09 each. The
premium on issue of shares of HK$58,500,000 was credited to the share premium account.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, 124,500,000 crdinary shares of HK$0.10 each were issued upor conversion of 2041 CN with an
aggregate principat amourit of HK$18,675,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company allotied and issued 146,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each for cash at the
axercise price of HK$0.141 per share as a result of the exercise of options under the share option scheme approvad by the shareholders of the
Comparny.

Cn 22 Aprit 2014, the Company completed a placerment of 682,480,00C ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at a placing price of HK$0.228 per share
to independent third parties. Accordingly, 682,480,000 ordinary shares of HK$0,10 each were Issued at a premium of HK$C.128 each and the
pramium on issue of shares of HK$87,357,000 was cradited to the share premium account.

Al shares issued by the Company in 2013 and 2014 rank par passt in all respects with the existing shares.
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95  SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”} was adopted for a period of 10 years commencing 6 November
2006 pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the special general meeting of the shareholders held on 6
November 2006 for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to selected employees and directors for their
contribution o the Group.

Under the Scheme, the Compatty may grant options to selected directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant share
options to eligible suppliers, customers, advisors and consultants to the Company and its subsidiaries at the
discretion of the Board of Directors of the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point of time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders; nor to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may be granted to any individual in any one year is
not permiited to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company's shareholders, Options granted to substantial shareholders, independent non-executive directors, or
any of their respective associates (including a discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include substantial
shareholders, independent non-executive directors, or any of their respective associates} in excess of 0.1% of the
Company's share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be aiso approved by the Company's
shareholders.

The exercise price of the share options is determinabie by the directors, but may not be less than the highast of: {)
the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares on the date of the offer of the share options which must
be a business day; (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the ofer; and (i) the nominal value of the Company's shares.

As at 31 Decemnber 2014, options to subscribe for an aggregate of 1,204,000,000 shares (2013: 703,000,000 sharas) of
the Company granted to the directors, certain employees and other participants purstiant to the Scheme remained
outstanding.
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25 SHARE OPTIONS — CONTINUED

Details of the movements in the number of share cptions during the year ended 31 December 2014 under the
Scheme are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2014

-ﬂ_ﬁp@iuﬁ type..

- Exgrcisable period -7
- (both dates itichusive} -

Employees:
N 25 Novernber 2013 25 November 2613~ 0219 54,006,000 - - {7,000,000) 57,004,000
24 November 2016
R 17 iy 2014 17 July 2014 - 0.200 - 3,004,000 - - 3,000,000
16 July 2017
44,000,000 3,000,000 - (7,000,000 40,000,000
Direciors:
] 11 Api 2013 {ote faly 3 luly 2013 - 0.255 88,000,000 - - - 88,000,000
WAL 206
K 30 July 2013 (Note (o) 4 September 2013 - 0264 147,500,000 - - - 147,500,000
2 iy 2016
L 30 July 2013 (ote () 14 September 2014 - 0.X6 73,750,000 - - - 73,750,600
2 iy 2616
M 30 July 2013 (Note ol 16 September 2015 - 0206 73,750,000 - - - 73,750,000
26 July 2016
383,000,000 - - - 383,000,000
Suppiiers and others:
H 11 AN 2013 11 Api2013- G.255 128,000,000 - - - 128,000,000
10 April 216
| 11 Api 2013 iNote (cl) 11 Aprll 2013~ 0.255 32,000,000 - - 132,000,000} -
28 February 2014
N 25 Novermnber 2013 25 November 2013 - 029 32,000,000 - - - 32,000,000
24 November 2016
[¢] 25 Movember 2013 25 Novermber 2014 - 0219 54,000,000 - - - 64,000,000
24 November 2616
P 4 June 2014 4]une 2014 0,189 - 70,000,500 - - 70,008,000
3June 2017
Q 17 July 2014 7 July 2014 - 0200 - 457,000,000 - - 467,000,000
18 )y 2017
256,000,000 537,000,000 - (32,000,000} 761,000,000
703,000,000 540,000,000 - (36,000,000, 1,204,000,000
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25 SHARE OPTIONS — CONTINUED

Details of the movements in the number of share options during the year ended 31 December 2013 under the
Scheme are as follows:

“Exaiclsable perlod

~ (bigth dates fichisive):

Granted -~ Exerclsed -

£mployees:
A 10 Febmuary 2010 10 Febrary 2010- 1564 276,667 - - (2896,667)
9 February 2613
B 10 February 2010 10 Noverober 2010- 1.564 2,096,657 - - (2,096,667 -
9 February 2013
c 10 Febrisary 2010 10 Augrist 211 - 1564 216,667 - - (2,096,667} -
9 February 2013
N 25 November 2013 25 November 2013 - 0219 - 64,000,000 - - 64,000,000
24 November 2316
6,290,001 54,000,000 - 16,296,000 64,00G,000
Directors:
) 19 March 2010 9 March 2010 - 1610 90,006 - - {90,000) -
¢ February 2013
E 19 March 2610 10 Movember 201G 1410 90,000 - - {90,000) -
§ Febuary 2013
F 19 MarCh 2010 10 Atigust 2011 - 14610 90,000 - - {50,000 -
9 February 2013
H A 2013 Mote @) 3y 2013 0.25 - 8,000,000 - - 88,000,000
10 April 2316
K 30 July 2013 (hote (b)) 16 September 2013 - 0.206 - 147,500,000 - - 147,500,000
29 )Ully 2016
L ly X3 (Note D} 16 September 2014 0206 - 73750006 - - 73,750,003
29 July 2036
M 30uly 2013 (Note b 16 September 2015— 0206 - 73,150,000 - - 73,750,000
B July 2016
270,000 383,000,000 - {770,000) 383,000,000
Suppliers and others:
A 10 February 2016 16 February 2010 - 1564 1939999 - - (1,939,999 -
¢ February 2013
B 10 February 2010 10 Movember2010- 1.564 1939999 - - {1.932.9%) -
9 February 2013
c 10 February 2010 10 August 2011 - 1564 1,940,000 - - {1,940,000) -
¢ February 2013
G 1% Ocioher 2011 11 Oclober 2011 - 014 140,800,000 - (140,000,000) - -
10 Oclober 2013
H 11 Aprit 2043 11 Apil 2013 - 0255 - 128,000,000 - - 128000,003
10 Apiil 2016
{ AP 2013 lote {31 Aprl 2013 0255 - 32,000,000 - - 32,000,000
28 February 2014
N 25 Novenmber 2043 25 November 2013 - 0.21% - 32,000,000 - - 32,005,000
24 Movember 2016
0 25 November 2013 25 November 2014 - 0219 - 64,000,000 - - #4,000000
24 November 2016
145,819,998 256,600,000 (140000000 - 5.819.999) 256,000,000
152319992 TO3000006 (140,000,000 (12379999 703,000,000
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25 SHARE OPTIONS - GONTINUED

Pursuant to the resolution of the Company passed on, 4 june and 17 July 2014, the Company has granted total
3,000,000 and 537,000,000 share options were granted to employees and consultants of the Company, respectively
under the Scheme.

The closing price of the Company's shares or the approval date on 4 June and 17 July 2014, the respective dates of
grant of the options, were HK$0.189 and HK$0.200, respectively,

The Binominal model has been usad to estimate the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the independent professional valuer's best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. The estimated fair values of the
options on their respactive grant dates are as fotlows:

irvaie -
~HKS
A 10 February 2010 0.372
B 10 February 2010 0.7
C 10 February 2010 0.459
D 19 March 2010 0.384
E 19 March 2010 0.425
F 19 March 2010 0.469
G 11 Octeber 2011 0.0449
H 11 Aptit 2013 0.0%6
| 11 April 2013 (note (c)) 0.096
J 11 April 2013 (note (@) 0.084
K 30 July 2013 {note (b)) 0.093
L 30 July 2013 ote O) 0.095
M 30 Iuly 2013 {note &) 0098
N 25 November 2013 0077
0 25 November 2013 0.077
P 4 June 2014 0.0693
Q 17 July 2014 0.058
R 17 July 2014 0.054
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25

SHARE OPTIONS — CONTINUED

The inputs into the model in respect of the share options granted were as follows:

Share price on grant date (HK$) 0255 025 O3 023 023 0234 0215 0215 018% 0200 0200

Exercise price (HKS} 0255 0255 0255 G206 0206 0206 0219 0219 048 0200 GXO0
Bxpected volatifity 60.22% 60.22% 5800% 58I9% 58.9% 5819% 57.77% G777% 57.13% 5535% S55.35%
Expected life (years) 300 08 277 287 &7 087 300 255 3 3 3
Risk-free rate 019% 019%  051% 054% 054%  054% 037% 037%  110%  Ca0%  080%

Expected volatifity was determined by using the historical volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous
five years. '

The fair value of the share options granted was HK$43,676,000 (2013: HK$48,969,000), of which HK$8,740,000 (Note 8)
(2013; HK$32,23%,000) was related to services provided by the directors and employees of the Company and
HK$:34.916,000 {Note 13) (2013: HK$16,730,000) was related to services provided by the Group’s consuitants for the
year ended 31 December 2014, Share based arrangement with consultants were measured at the fair value of related
services rendered.

Notes,

@ Date of approval by shareholders was 3 July 2013.

) Date of approval by shareholders was 16 September 2013

(c These share options were granted to one of the executive directors on 11 April 2613 and the director resigned on 29 November 2013 According

1o the Schema, the outstanding number of share options held by the director can be exercised within 2 months from the date of bis resignation.
These share options were ¢lassified i the category of “other participants” in the above tables.
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26 RESERVES

- losses.

Balance as at 1 January 2013 4,022,678 60,322 39,747 (3,777 440) 345,307
Loss for the year - - - (676,022) (676,022}
Issise of shares upon placements 53,748 - - - 53,748
Share isstie expenses {5,006) - - - {5,006)
Issuz of shares upoh conversion :

of convertible notes 16,354 - - - 16,354
Issie of shares upoh exercise

of share opticns 12,306 - {6,566) - 5,740
Recognition of equity settled

share-based payments - - 48,969 - 48,969
Balance as at 31 December 2013 4,100,080 60,322 82,1560 {4,453,462) {210,910
Loss for the year e L {377.392) (377,392).
Issue of shares upon placements 187,357 L ' 87,387
Share isste expenses o (5,639) o - : e (5,639)
Recognition of equity settled B ' . R S

share-based payments -&3{_’6’_7'5_'@

Balance as at 31 December 2014 Sl o602 __:: 5,826 (4,8 54 903)
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27 BORROWINGS

Bank loan, secured (Note (@)

Other loans, secured (Note (b)) 2,000

275,000
Less: non-current portion (218,400)
Current portion 56,600

. HK$/000.

within 1 year 54,600
Between 1 and 2 years 54,600
Setween 2 and 5 years 109,200 163,800 -

218,400 273000

The carrying amount of the variable-rate borrowing approximates to their fair value. The carrying amount of last year
fixed-rate borrowings approximated to their fair value as the impact of discounting was not significart.
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27 BORROWINGS - CONTINUED

The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

218,400 275,000

The ranges of effective interest rate (which are also equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group's and Company's
borrowings are as follows:

2,000
273,000

Fixad-rate borrowings
Variable-rate horrowing

218,400 275,000

Notes:

@  On 3 November 2011, the Company entered into a loan agreement with a bank for a term loan facility of US$40,000,000 {approximately
HK$312,000,000) for the purpose of kunding the project in connection with the petroleum exploration and production in Argentina or to
rofinance any debt inctred by the Group for the purpese of this project.

The bark loan is secured by the shara capitat of certain subsidiaries of ihe Group, and the share capital and instruments of certain companles in
which Mr. Wu has financial Interests. The relevant loan agreement also feculires Mr. W to continue to be the Substantial Shareholders. On 26
March 2015, Mr. Wy entered inte a desd of urdertaking with the Company and undertakes (i) at a# times to maintain his position as the
Substantial Shareholders, and {i) to promptly acquire an adequate number of shares of the Company to malntain his positicn as the Sushstantial
Shareholder in any event that he is reasonsbly expected to cease to be the Stbstantial Shareholder as & result of issue of new shares by the
company.

(y  other loans represented short-term leans from independent third parties and were secured by issued shares of the Company registered in the
name of the shareholder of the Company as at 31 Decemnber 2013,
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28 CONVERTIBLE NOTES

(&

{b)

On 2 September 2011, the Company completed a placing agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which the
Company agreed to issue zero coupon convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$62,100,006
the 2011 CN" which cotld be converted into ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.15 per share (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments) through the placing agent to not
less than six independent placees.

During the year ended 31 Decermber 2013, the remaining amount of the 2011 CN with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$18,675,000 were converted by the kolders into 124,500,000 ordinary shares at a conversion price
of HK$0.15 per ordinary share. The weighted average share price at the date of conversion for the 2017 CN
during the year was HK$0.248.

on 11 April 2013, the Company completed the subscription agreement pursuant to which the Company agreed
to issUe 8% canvertible notes in an aggregate principal ameunt of HK$100,000,000 {the “2013 CN") which could
be converted into ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each-of the Company at an initial conversion price of HKS0.19 per
share {subject to anti-dilutive adjustments).

The 2013 CN is denominated in HKS, maturing on the second anniversary of the issue date of 11 April 2013 (the
"33 Maturity Date"). The maturity was subsequently amended on 8 January 2015. Details of which are set out
in Note 36. The Company shall redeer all the 2013 CN on the 2013 Maturity Date at 110% of the principal
amount outstanding, With the holder’s agreement, the Company may at any time and from time to time
purchase the outstanding 2013 CN at such price as may be agreed between the Company and the holder
thereof.

The holders of the 2013 CN shail, subject to certain conditions, have the right at any time during the conversion
period commencing from the day afier the issue date of the 2013 CN up to and including the date which is7
days prior to the 2013 Maturity Date convert the whole or part of the principal amount outstariding under the
9013 CN at an initial conversion price of HK$0.19 per share (subject to ant-dilutive adjustments) into ordinary
shares of the Company.

The 2012 CN contains two components, & fiability component and a conversion opticn. The conversion option
gives the holders the right at any time to convert the 2013 CN into ordinary shares of the Company. However,
since the conversion option would be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial assat for a fixed number of the Company's own equity instruments, the conversion opiion is accounted
for as a derivative liability and it is measured at fair vaiue with subsequent changes in fair value recognised at
profit or loss.

The fair value of the liability component upon the issuance of the 2013 CN was calculated at the present valug
of the redemption amount, at 110% of the principal amount. '
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28 GONVERTIBLE NOTES - CONTINUED

(b}

~ continued

The fair value of the conversion option was determined using the binomial option pricing model, and the inputs
irto the model at the relevant dates were as follows:

Conversicn price HK$0.19C HK$0.190
Share price HK$0.206 HK$0.156
Expected volatility 52.840% 47.503%
Remaining life 1.28 years 0.28 year
Risk-free rate 0.424% 0.404%

The liabifity component and the conversion component are included in “convertible notes” and “derivative
financial liabilites” Note 29) on the statement of financial position, respectively.

The fair value of the 2013 CN at 11 April 2013 amounted to HK$155,219,000. The difference between the fair
value of the 2013 CN and the cash consideratior: of HK$100,000,000 received to the extent of (i} HK$34,210,000
was recognised in the profit or loss on the date of issuance as this portion represented the loss which the
Company would have incurred if the 2013 CN was fully converted on the date of issuance; and (i)
HK$21,009,000 was deferrad and allocated batweaen the lability component and conversion aption based on the
relative fair values of these two components on the date of issuance of the 2013 CN. The portion ailocated to
the liahility component was recognised over the terms of 2013 CN using effective interest method whereas the
remaining portion allocated to the conversion option was amortised on a straight-fine method over the terms of
2013 CN. The effective interest rate of the liability compenent is 37.34%. As at 31 December 2014, the
unamartised deferred losses amounted to HK3799,000 (2013: HK$6,146,000) was included in conversion option,

The Company decided to issue 2013 CN, even though the fair vaiue of 2013 CN was higher than the cash
consideration, because the Company required additional capitai to finance its general working capital
requirements and the potential acquisition in the coming years.

0n 20 June 2014, the Company early redeemed 40% of the 2013 CN principat at HK$40,000,000.

As at 31 December 2014, the fair value of liability component of the 2013 CN was HK$940,000. The total fair
value gain for the year on the 2013 CN is HK$24,687,000.

During the year 2013 and 2014, none of the 2013 CN was converted into the ordinary shares of the Company.
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28 CONVERTIBLE NOGTES —~ GONTINUED

{)  The movements in the components of the 2011 CN and 2013 CN during the current and prior years ate set out
below:

.. '-_Tojta["

A1 January 2013 20,993 4934 25,927 - - -
2013 CN at issue date - - - 84,089 71,130 155,21
Deferred losses upen isstance - - - {11,382) ©.627) {21,009
Transaction cost - - - {1,896) (3,604) {3,500)
Gain on derivative component

recognised in profit or loss - - - - {25,229 {25,229
Amortisation of deferred loss on

conversion component - - - - 3482 3482
Corwersion during the year (23,870} {4,934} (28,804} - - -
Interest charge 2877 - 2,877 17,243 - 17,243
Inferest pakd - - - {4,000) - {4,000)
At 31 December 2013 - - - 84,054 38,152 122,206
Gain on derivative componant

recognised in profit or loss - - - - (34,687) {34,687
Amortisatiorn of deferred l0ss on

conversion component - - - - 5347 5,347
Redempticn during the year - - (37,105) {2,895) (40,000)
interest charge - - 22949 - 22,949
fterest paid - - 7.021 - {7,021)
As at 31 Decermber 2014 - - - 62,877 5917 68,794

Analysed for reporting purpose as:

current lizhilities (Note)
Non-current liabilities

Note:

As at 31 Decermber 2014, the amount represenited the coupon payments to be made ir relation to the 2013 CN within the next twelve months
from the date of statement of financial position.
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29 DERIVATIVE FINANGIAL LIABILITIES

Warrants (Note)
Conversion option of the 2013 CN (Note 28)

58,903

Less: hon-current liabilities (58,903)

Current liabilitdes

Mote:

As part of the placing agreement of March 2013 Placing Shares, the Company issued unlisted warrants (the "Warrants") on the basis of 5 Warrants of
each of the March 2013 Placing Shares issued, at no initial price. The exercise price of the Warrant was at HK$0.20 each and could be exercised at any
time for period of three years from the issue date.

On the date of issuance, the fair value of the March 2013 Flacing Shares and Warrants amounted to HK$24,125,000 aned HK$45,938,000, respectively.
The difference between the ageregate fair value of the March 2013 Placing Shares and the Watrants on the date of issuance and the total cash
cansideration of HK$22,500,000 recelved was deferred and allocated between the 2013 Placing Shares and the Warranis based on the relative fair
value of these two instruments on fhe date of ssuance. The portion to the extent of HK$31,186,000 aliocated to the Warrants was recognised over the
terms of the Warrants on a straight-ine methed and the portion to the extent of HKS7,748,000 allocated to the March 2013 Placing Shares is not re-
measured subsequent to initial recognition. As at 31 December 2014, the Unamortised deferred losses amounted to HK$10,062,000 {2013:
HK$22,499,000) was Included in the Warrants. '

The Company decided to issue the March 2¢13 Placing Shares and Warrants, even tholigh the fair vaiue of the 2013 Placing Shares and Watranis were
higher than the cash consideration, because the Company was required to raise additional capital to finance its general working capital requirements
and the potential acquisition in the coming years.

The fair value of the Warrants was determined using the biack-scholes model and the significant inputs are as foliows.

Conversion price HK$0.200 HK$0.200

Share price HK$0.204 HK$0.156
Expected volatitity 56.684% 43.438%
Remaining life 2.16 years 1.16 years

Risk-free rate 0.375% 0.534%




1l

EPI {Holdings) Limited = Annual Report 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables (Note (a)

interest payable on borrowings 2,021
Other payables and accruals 21,683
23,704

Notas:

@

Less than 30 days

The average credit period on purchases of geods is 30 days.

The carrying amount of trade and other payables are denominated In currencies:

" HK$/000
Equivalent -

29,174

B8IH -
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CASH USED IN OPERATIONS

2014

HK$000"

= HK'$:'OQ0_ :

Loss for the year (381,143). ' (679171)

Income tax charge recognised in profit or loss -

Adjustments for:
— Depreciation and depleticn of pfoperty, planz and equipment 27,443
— Impairment foss of property, plant and eguipiment (Note 9) 51,111
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 164
— Impairment loss of exploration and evatuation assets (Note 9} 442,197
— kmpairment oss of other receivables (Note 5) 13,966
— Reversal of impairment loss of other tax recoverabies {Note 9) {660}
— Fair value {gairy/loss on derivative component of convertible notes

{Note 10) 12,464

— Fair value (gainy/loss on warrants (Note 10) 5,999
- Share-based payments (Note 25) 48,969
— Interest income (Note 7} -
— Interest expense (Note 11) 43,757
— Loss/(gain) on held-for-frading nvesiments (Note 10) {61}

Changes in working capital:
— Increase in trade and other receivables and prepayments (22,523)
— Decrease in othar tax recoverable 21,796
— Increase/{idecrease) in trade and cther payables (57,138}
— Decrease in other non-current ligbilities -

Cash used in operations (91,687}
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32 JOINT OPERATIONS

Chafiares entered into a joint venture agreement (“JV Agreement”) with a third party ("Third Party"} on 14 November
2007 In connaction with the development of incremental hydrocarbon production in the "Puesto Pozo Cercado” area
and “Chafiares Herrados” area ("Areas”, through tha investments made hy the Third Party. Under the JV Agreement,
it was established that the hydrocarbon obtained from the wells drilled within the scope of the IV Agreement, as well
as any other benefits obtained from the exploration and production of the works performed thereunder, shail be
distributed in the following proportion: 28% for Chafiares and 72% for the Third Party.

A subsidiary of the Group — Have Result Investments tLimited ("Have Result”) entered into an agreement for the
Assignment of Rights, Investment and Fechnical Cooperation with the Third Party dated 24 Noveinber 2007, as
amended and/or supplemented by () a deed of undertaking executed by the Third Party on 12 December 2007; (i) a
supplemertary deed of undertaking executed by the Third Party on 28 December 2007; and (i) a document entitied
*Amendment to Contract of Assignment of Rights, Investment and Technical Cooperation” executed by and between
the Third Party and Have Result, dated 19 Decernber 2008 (the “Assignment Agreement”). Under the Assigniment
Agreements, the Third Party assigned in favour of Have Result 51% of its rights on the future production as a
consequence of new drillings and the operation of new wells in the Areas. The incremental hydrocarbon production
derived from the new wells in the Areas will first cover the operating costs and thereafter is shared by the proportion
of 51% to Have Result, 21% to the Thirg Party and 28% to Chafares. As from the date the wells drifled under the terms
of the Assignment Agreement go into production, the Third Party shalf also reimburse Have Result for 21% of the
aggregate investments made by Have Result in the Areas.

On 2 December 2010, Have Result sent a letier to the Third Party stating and confirming the termination of the v
Agreement ("Termination”). As advised by the Argentina legal advisers of the Company, notwithstanding the
Termination, Have Result remains entitled to a 51% right in the production from the five existing wells drifled by Have
ResUlt in the Areas (the "Bxisting Wells”), provided that Have Result continues to pay the relevant operating costs as
required by the production allocated to it.

Another subsidiary of the Group, Southstart Limited ("Southstart”) and Chafiares entered into a new Joint Venture
Agreement (“New JV Agreement”) on 2 December 20190, Pursuant to which EP Energy S.A. ("EP Energy™), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Southstart is entitled to share 72% of hydrocarbon production from the wedls drilled by EP Energy
in the current and fuiure years until the end of the Concessions period and paid US$6,000,000 {equivalent to
approximately HK$46,800,000) to Chafiares in consideration for the oil exploration and production right in the Areas
during the cusrent term of the Concessions.

Pursuant to the New JV Agreement, the totai consideration for the oil exploration and production right is subject 0
adjustment with reference to whether or not Chafiares can cbtain the extension of the term of Concessions (the
“Extension”) by 31 December 2011. On 14 July 2011, the Company was informed by Chafiares that the Executive of
the Province of Mendoza has issued a Decree pursuant to which Chafiares obtained an extension of 10 years from
the date of expiry of the original term of the Concessions until 2027 (Note 16}, EP Energy paid an aggregate amount of
US$4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$31,200,000) to Chafares in consideration for the oil exploration and
praduction right in the Areas during the extended term of the Concessions. A sum of US$1,404,000 {equivalent to
approximately HK$10,952,000) was paid in 2011 and the remaining balance of US$2,596,000 {equivalent o
approximately HX$20,248,000) was paid in 2012.
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JOINT GPERATIONS - CONTINUED

According 1o the New JV Agreement, EP Energy is cbliged to drill a minimum of five production wells per year during
the five consecutive years from 2012, and two production wells per year for the following years until the seventh year
before the expiration of the extended term of the Concessions. Failure to meet the minimum drilling requirements
may render the New JV Agreement to be terminated and EP Energy will be forfeited any right to continue drifling but it
will not be forfeited any right in respect of the welis already drilled.

On 5 lune 2012, EP Energy, Have Result and Chafiares entered into an operation agreement ("the Operation
Agreement"”). Pursuant to the Operation Agreement, Chafiares agreed to release EP Energy from the above
commitment. EP Enargy, however, retains the right to drifl and invest in the Areas during the life of the Concessions
awarded with respect to the Areas and any extension thereof. If five or more new wells are drilled by EP Energy in a
year, EP Energy shall be entitled to 72% and Chafiares shali be entitled to 28% of the hydrocarbon production of the
new wells; and if less than five new wells are drilled by EP Energy in a year, EP Energy shall be entitled to 65% and
Chatiares shail be entitled to 35% of the hydrocarbon production of the new wealls. The Operation Agreement
confirms that the hydrocarbon production of the existing five wells drilled by EP Energy shall continue to be
distribuzed in accordance with the New JV Agreement (i.e., 72% to EP Energy and 28% to Chaftares). On the other
hand, Chafiares becomes entitled to be associated with third parties for carrying out any work ot drilling any wells in
the Areas.

The Operation Agreement reconfirms that Have Result has the right to receive 51% of the hydrocarborn production
obtained from the Existing Wells until the termination of the Concessions held in respect of the Areas and any
extension thereof. Have Resuit agreed that part of the proceeds from previous production of the Existing Wells, as
well as the future production from the Existing Wells up to 31 December 2013, shall be reinvested in the Areas,
including workover of the Existing Welis.

The aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses recognised in the consolidated financial
statermnents in relation to the Group's interest in the joint operations are as follows:

Assets 318678 423,206

lLiabilities 11,026
Revenue 89,853
Expenses 187,811
FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company gave indemnities to two non-controlling shareholders of companies
controlled by Mr. Wu, indemnifying them against any loss they may sustain in case of any action or claim against
those companies pursuant to the guarantee provided in respect of a bank foan and that the total amount payable wil
not exceed an aggregate amount of up to US$13,000,000 {approximately HK$101,14G,000)see Note 27),
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35

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The future aggregate minirmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating keases are due as follows:

No later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The shares of the Company are widely held, and the Company has no ultimate controlling party.

Save as disclosed elsewhere to these consolidated financial statements, the following transactions were carried ot
with related parties:

{8} Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and cther members of key management during the year were as follows:

2014
HK$'000

Short-term employee benefits 16,323
Post-employment benefits : )

Share-based payments

36 EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF FINANGIAL POSITION

@ ©On 8 January 2015, the Company entered into an amendment deed with the 2013 CN holder to extend the
maturity date of the 2013 CN issued by the Company on 11 Apil 2013 for 1 year from 11 April 2015 to 1 April
2016. On 17 February 2015, an ordinary resolution was passed by shareholders at the special general meeting
to approve the amendment deed. :

{(b) Mr. Wu has signed a deed of undertakinig with the Company and undertakes to maintain at all time as a
siibstantial shareholder of the Company (Note 27). As at 31 December 2014 and up to the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements, Mr. Wu, directly or indirectly, holds 10.01% of the Company's shares
and remains as a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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o
HREO00
- (restated). - (et

RESULTS

Revenue 89,853 80,854 42,554 35,694

{€65,113) (3,343,544) (225,899) {312,551
- {10,357 7,942 -

Loss before income tax
Income tax (expense)/cradit

Loss for the year from continuing

operations (665,113) (3,353,895) {217,957) (312,551}

(Loss)/profit for the vear from

discontinued operaticns — Metals {14,058) 1,855 220 23,033

Profit for the vear from
discontinued operations — Electronic - - - 890
{14,058) 1,855 220 23,923

Loss for the year (679,171) (3,352,040} (217,737) (288,628)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

676,343 1,136,707 4,525,191 4,377,434
(458,157) (463,105} (606,250} (325,399

Totai assets
Totat Hiabilities

Equity attributable to owners of

the Company 218,186 673,602 3,918,941 4,052,035

Note:  Duringthe year ended 31 December 2010, the Group discortinued the consumer electronics and metals operations,

During the years ended 31 December 2014, 2012, 2013, 2014 the Group discontinued the metals operations.
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